
 

 
24 September 2012 Regular Short Meeting Agenda 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular Short Meeting 
Monday, 24 September 2012, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
      

Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 
 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 
Councilmember Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Vernon L. Brown 
Councilmember George M. Daye 

 
City Officials 
 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 
 

In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance as well 
as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values regarding Ethical 
Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to whether any Council 
Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with respect to matters before the 
City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, please 
state so at this time. 
 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and responsibilities 
with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance and operations of 
the City. 
 



 

 
24 September 2012 Regular Short Meeting Agenda 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a) 10 September 2012 Regular Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1] 
b) 13 September 2012 Ride-Around 
c) 14 September 2012 Special Called Meeting 

 
VII. PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 

 
a ) 2011 Life Safety Achievement Award 
c) National Fire Prevention Week Proclamation  - October 7-13, 2012 
 

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Citizens may only speak on Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the Council 
must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  The 
sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident, and identify the Agenda Item 
about which you wish to speak on the sign up sheet.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3  
 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 
 
  a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-81, Authorizing the Execution of a Contract 

with the H.G. Reynolds Company for a Water Main Relocation and Tie-In in Conjunction 
with a Red Bud Creek Bridge Replacement Project. (Project #BD-5105C, WBS Elements: 
45351.3.3) (CAF 12-118)  [See Notebook Tab 2] 

 
 Resolution 12-81 

 
  b) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-80, Appointments to the Henderson Zoning 

Board of Adjustment Committee, and Henderson Recreation and Parks Commission.  (CAF 
12-117)  [See Notebook Tab 3] 

 
 Resolution 12-80 

   
X. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  
The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to 
offer comments on matters of concern to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public 
comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 



 

 
24 September 2012 Regular Short Meeting Agenda 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
XII. REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 
b) City Manager  
c) City Attorney 
d) City Clerk 

i. Calendar Notes and Schedule Update [See Notebook Tab 4] 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

                                                                                                                                                                         
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, 
may limit comments to three minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to 
address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue 
oriented.  Except for the public hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the 
public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council 
Committee or agency and may, if in order, be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to 
specific individuals are to be directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court 
system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter 
brought up during the public comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item 
on a future meeting agenda. 
 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

10 September 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 8 

City Council Minutes--DRAFT 
Regular Meeting 

10 September 2012 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr.,  Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda G. Peace-Jenkins, Vernon Brown, Garry 
D. Daeke, and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John Zollicoffer, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Code Compliance Director Corey Williams,  Planning 
Director Erris Dunston and Recreation and Parks Director Alan Gill. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 10 September 2012 Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

    
Mayor O’Geary welcomed everyone present and asked the City Clerk to call Roll. 

         
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins led those in attendance in prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  City Clerk McCrackin said 
the City Attorney added a line to the Be It Resolved section of Resolution 12-05 Consideration of 
Declaring the Old First National Bank Building on Garnett Street as Surplus Property and 
Authorizing the Solicitation of Proposals from Realtors to Market and Sell said Building. 
Council Member Inscoe moved to accept the Agenda as adjusted.  Motion seconded by Council 
Member Daye and unanimously approved. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

10 September 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 8 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  City Clerk 
McCrackin said there was a technical error with the date of the minutes on the Mid-Year Team 
Building Retreat which has already been corrected.  Council Member Inscoe moved to accept the 
adjusted minutes for 23 August 12 Mid-Year Retreat, and the 27 August 12 Short Regular and 
Work Session minutes as presented. Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey and 
unanimously approved. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak to 
Council on agenda matters.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
An Amendment to the FY 2012-2013 Recreation Department Budget to Include Donations 
for Babe Ruth Softball Tournament Expenses, FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #11 
(Reference: CAF 12-114; Ordinance 12-65) 
 
City Manager Griffin said this is a housekeeping item.  Mr. Griffin said the girls’ softball team 
did well during the tournament but expenses exceeded budget.  This budget amendment allows 
for an intra-fund transfer along with accepting donations received from various donors to cover 
the overage.  
 
There was no discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Kearney moved the approval of Ordinance 12-65, An Amendment to the FY 
2012-2013 Recreation Department Budget to Include Donations for Babe Ruth Softball 
Tournament Expenses, FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #11.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-
Jenkins, Daeke, Brown and Daye.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: None. (See 
Ordinance Book 8, p 481) 
 
FY12-13 Budget Amendment #10 Appropriating Tap Fee from Vance County for Phases 
2A and 2B to Rate Stabilization.  (Reference: CAF: 12-116; Ordinance 12-68) 
 
City Manager Griffin said this is a housekeeping item which allows for the one time tap fee 
dollars received from Vance County to be appropriated properly into the Rate Stabilization 
account. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked if the USDA had approved the fee.  Mr. Griffin said yes; the 
contract has been signed by the USDA and the tap fee was part of the contract between the City 
and Vance County.  Mr. Kearney asked if Granville County paid a similar fee and whether the 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

10 September 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 8 

tap fee could legally be divided so some of the funds would go into the general fund.  Mr. Griffin 
said no:  Granville County’s agreement is to pay significantly more for water than Vance 
County.  He went on to say all tap fees go into a specific revenue line item in the Water Fund, 
and he felt the Vance County tap fee should not be separated. 
 
City Attorney Zollicoffer said Vance County’s Phase 2A and 2B is different from Granville 
County’s agreement because the water allotment differs. 
 
There was no further discussion and Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Ordinance 12-68, FY12-13 Budget Amendment 
#10 Appropriating Tap Fee from Vance County for Phases 2A and 2B to Rate Stabilization. 
Motion seconded by Council Member Inscoe and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye and Kearney. NO: None.  
ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: None. (See Ordinance Book 8, p. 487) 
 
Providing for the Disposition of Certain Jointly Held Properties by the City and County 
Otherwise Identified as 1) 434 Whitten Avenue; 2) 1029 North Garnett Street; and 3) 514 
High Street.  (Reference:  CAF 12-121; Resolution 12-79) 
 
City Manager Griffin said County and City administrators recently met and agreed to draft an 
inter-local agreement for the sale of jointly owned properties. Although the agreement is not 
finalized, interest from the private sector has prompted this request to transfer three (3) 
properties to Vance County with the understanding that the sale proceeds be shared on a pro-rata 
basis on the amount of taxes owed the City and County.   
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if there would be a separate agreement for each future transaction.  
City Manager Griffin said once the inter-local agreement is signed there would be no need for 
separate agreements.  Council Member Kearney asked what fund the sales dollars would go into 
and Mr. Griffin said once the sales amount is known it would go into the General Fund and could 
be appropriated for specific purposes as Council advises by reverting to the fund balance. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if there would be a set price for the properties.  Mr. Griffin said 
the County would set the price with the goal being to recover all monies owed.  He went on to 
say selling the properties would benefit the City by bringing in more tax revenue and removing 
liability from the City.  Council Member Daeke expressed concern that the properties would be 
sold to individuals who currently are not taking responsibility for their property.  Mr. Griffin said 
he could discuss the issue with Fair Housing and Code Compliance but he was hopeful that 
between Code enforcement and tax collections this would not happen.  Ms. Coffey commented 
that once the property is put up for sale the City would lose control of who buys the property.  
  
There was no further discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

10 September 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 8 

 
Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 12-79, Providing for the Disposition 
of Certain Jointly Held Properties by the City and County Otherwise Identified as 1) 434 Whitten 
Avenue; 2) 1029 North Garnett Street; and 3) 514 High Street.  Motion seconded by Council 
Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, 
Daeke, Brown, Daye, Kearney and Coffey. NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: None.  
(See Resolution Book 3, p.53) 
 
Granting a Ninety (90) Day Extension to Allow the Owner of the Property Located at 301 
Charles Street to Secure the Structure and Improve the Property.  (Reference:  CAF 12-A-
106; Resolution 12-75) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Code Compliance Director Corey Williams to update Council on 
this property, along with the following three properties.  Mr. Williams reminded Council this 
was discussed at the previous Work Session and all four properties are owned by the same 
individuals (Luis Medina and wife, Veronica Medina).  He said he has been in contact with the 
owners and received an e-mail late this afternoon saying Mr. Medina has read and understands 
the agreements sent to him for each property.  Mr. Williams said in verbal conversation, Mr. 
Medina is optimistic the work can be completed in a timely manner, and also felt selling of the 
property will occur within the ninety (90) days.   
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if this included the grass cutting and boarding up the structures.  Mr. 
Williams said yes. 
 
City Attorney Zollicoffer said if the owner defaults on one property, the separate ordinances will 
allow the property owner to proceed with the remaining properties.  He also said no matter who 
owns the property, the condemnation order still exists. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked for verification that all four properties must comply within  
ninety (90) days to comply as opposed to one property at a time complying.  Both Mr. Williams 
and Attorney Zollicoffer responded each of the four properties must comply by December 10th.    
Council Member Coffey asked for clarification that if one property is not done, the City has the 
right to proceed with that one without waiting for the other three.  Mr. Williams said that was 
correct. 
 
City Manager Griffin said the first Council meeting in December is on the 10th.  He said this 
issue will be on the agenda for December 10 and if all requirements are met, Council will be so 
advised during the meeting.  If requirements are not met, Council will be able to proceed during 
the December 10 meeting. There was no further discussion so Mayor O’Geary asked for the 
pleasure of Council.   
 
Council Member Rainey asked if Mr. Williams would keep Council up-to-date.  Mr. Griffin said 
Mr. Williams has been and will continue to keep on top of the situation. 
 
There was no further discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

10 September 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 5 of 8 

 
Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of Resolution 12-75, Granting a Ninety (90) Day 
Extension to Allow the Owner of the Property Located at 301 Charles Street to Secure the 
Structure and Improve the Property; Resolution 12-76, Granting a Ninety (90) Day Extension to 
Allow the Owner of the Property Located at 309 Charles Street to Secure the Structure and 
Improve the Property; Resolution 12-77, Granting a Ninety (90) Day Extension to Allow the 
Owner of the Property Located at 315 Charles Street to Secure the Structure and Improve the 
Property; and Resolution 12-78, Granting a Ninety (90) Day Extension to Allow the Owner of 
the Property Located at 318 Rowland Street to Secure the Structure and Improve the Property; 
and Resolution 12-79 Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke and APPROVED by the 
following vote:  YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye, Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe.  
NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: None.   (See Resolution Book 3, p 45, 47,  49  and 51) 
 
Consideration of FY 13 Airport Funding.    
 
City Manager Griffin said Council Member Rainey was approached by Mr. David Thomas from 
the Airport Authority regarding the City’s contribution to the Airport and then asked Mr. Rainey 
to present the concerns.   
 
Council Member Rainey began by saying Council worked hard to balance the budget during lean 
times and that the Manager did what Council requested which was to provide the Airport 
Authority with $26,100.  However, all the other partners in the Airport Authority contributed 
$27,500 and the Authority is now asking Council to match that amount.  Mr. Rainey was 
informed by Mr. Thomas that the Authority has received a letter from the NC Department of 
Transportation of a possible grant opportunity of $2.25M, with a $250,000 match, to upgrade the 
airport.  Since the recommended budget provided for the requested $28,800 from the Authority, 
the Authority is now asking for an additional $2,700 from the City.  Mr. Rainey felt this was a 
good opportunity to invest in the future. 
 
Council Member Brown asked if he was correct in understanding that $2,700 was holding up a 
$2.25M grant.  Council Member Coffey asked how close the Authority is in meeting the 
$250,000 match and Council Member Inscoe asked when the grant application needed to be 
submitted.  Mr. Rainey was unsure of the answers and said if Council wished he would be happy 
to speak with Mr. Thomas and report back. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Coffey to delay a decision until the next meeting when it 
was hoped Mr. Thomas could be present to answer Council’s questions.  Motion was seconded 
by Council Member Daye and Approved by the following vote:  YES:  Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, 
Brown, Daye, Coffey and Inscoe.  NO:  Kearney and Rainey.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  
None. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

10 September 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 6 of 8 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
The City Clerk read the Consent Agenda, summarized as follows: 
 
 a) Approving the Submission of the Application of an Urban Progress Zone 

Designation.  Approval of this North Carolina Department of Commerce application 
would qualify enterprises and activities to receive significant tax credits for job creation 
and investment in machinery and equipment.  (Reference: CAF 12-93; Resolution 12-64) 
(See Resolution Book 3, p 23) 

 
 b) Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with Environmental Engineering & 

Technology (EE&T) for Engineering/Inspection Services in Conjunction with a 
State Revolving Fund Loan for the High Service Pump Replacement and New 
Warren County Meter Vault for the Regional Water System. Execution of this 
agreement with EE&T allows for engineering services related to the High Service Pump 
Replacement and the New Warren County Meter Vault relocation project in the amount 
of $40,100.   (Reference: CAF 12-A-88, Resolution 12-71) (See Resolution Book 3, p 37) 

 
 c) Consideration of Declaring the Old First National Bank Building on Garnett Street 

as Surplus Property and Authorizing the Solicitation of Proposals from Realtors to 
Market and Sell said Building. This resolution declares the First National Bank 
Building (also known as the SNB Building) to be surplus property and authorized the 
solicitation of proposals to sell the building. (Reference: CAF 12-18; Resolution 12-05) 
(See Resolution Book 2, p 259) 

 
 d) Approving Demolition of 587 Beckford Drive.  This structure meets the requirements 

in Section 21A (Abandoned Structure) of the City Code and proper enforcement 
procedures have been followed.  This resolution allows the enforcement process to 
continue.  (Reference: CAF 12-110; Ordinance 12-62) (See Ordinance Book 8, p. 475) 

 
e) Approving Demolition of 707 Marshall Street.  This structure meets the requirements 

in Section 21A (Abandoned Structure) of the City Code and proper enforcement 
procedures have been followed.  This resolution allows the enforcement process to 
continue.   (Reference: CAF 12-111; Ordinance 12-63) (See Ordinance Book 8, p 477) 

 
f) Approving Demolition of 710 Marshall Street.  This structure meets the requirements 

in Section 21A (Abandoned Structure) of the City Code and proper enforcement 
procedures have been followed.  This resolution allows the enforcement process to 
continue.    (Reference: CAF 12-112; Ordinance 12-64) (See Ordinance Book 8, p 479) 

 
Mayor O’Geary asked if anyone wished to remove an item from the Consent Agenda.  No 
request was made.  Mayor O’Geary then asked for a motion to approve the consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

10 September 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 7 of 8 

Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of the Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Council Member Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Daeke, 
Brown, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey and Peace-Jenkins.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  
None.  ABSENT: None. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
City Clerk McCrackin advised one citizen wished to address City Council. 
 
 Mr. Donald French, 551 Vance Academy Road.   Mr. French said he signed a lease to 
rent at 551 Vance County Road on July 6, 2012 and moved in on July 20.  He said on August 18, 
2012 he moved into the rental property.  Mr. French said Ms. Lloyd, the landlord along with 
Dennis Lloyd, came to City Hall with a cut off agreement but that one of the customer service 
representatives told Ms. Lloyd it was not needed and to destroy the agreement.  Mr. French said 
he has been billed for water from July 6 and requests a $120.00 credit.  He said the problem is 
with the City employees and the problems need to be corrected. 
 
Mayor O’Geary thanked Mr. French and asked the City Manager to look into the situation.  Mr. 
Griffin said he had spoken to Mr. French earlier and would be happy to provide documentation 
to Council. 
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rainey said he has been asked why the City has never erected a sign 
recognizing the girls’ softball team that won the World’s Series several years back.  He 
felt citizens and visitors should know about this accomplishment and asked that prices be 
requested for erecting a sign. 
 

b) City Manager  
1) Mr. Griffin advised that although no action is required by Council, he wanted to 

make the surplus property list available for review by Council.  There were no 
questions from Council members. 

2) As a follow up to the Team Building Retreat, Mr. Griffin said a flyer will be 
going out in the coming weeks to citizens briefly explaining the budget.  Council 
Member Inscoe asked if the information could be placed on the web and Mr. 
Griffin said as soon as the proof comes back it can be put on the City’s web page.  
Mr. Griffin said there are plans to do another flyer with important contact 
numbers and explanations regarding sanitation requirements/beautifying the City, 
etc. 

3) Mr. Griffin said the Police Chief will be making a public announcement 
emphasizing parking issues and the department will be clamping down 
specifically on those parking vehicles illegally on the wrong side of the street. 

 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

10 September 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 8 of 8 

Council Member Coffey took a moment to thank the Dispatch for their well-written Editorial 
regarding Mopeds. 
 
Council Member Brown asked for clarification regarding the City not picking up more than 200 
pounds at a time.  He felt with gas prices the truck should pick up more.  After a brief discussion, 
Assistant City Manager Frazier clarified that there is a charge for picking up more than 200 
pounds but it is assumed anything placed at the street is there for pickup and the truck picks up 
until it is full.  He also addressed the fact that sometimes contractors do not complete their job 
and leave items such as felled trees at curbside and that the City will notify the property owner 
that there will be a charge for removing such items.   

 
c) City Attorney (No Report) 
d) City Clerk - Ms. McCrackin reminded Council that there is a Special Called Meeting for 

Friday 14 September 2012 at Noon; the Ride-Around is scheduled for Thursday 13 
September 2012 from 2-4 p.m.; and the Crime Stoppers Banquet will be held on October 
4th.  She also said the 31 January 2013 date set for the Strategic Plan meeting is in 
conflict with the Clerk’s Academy and if acceptable, the Mayor and City Manager would 
like to move the meeting to a Wednesday in January.  Council was agreeable and Council 
Member Kearney said the end of the month would be better for him. 
 

Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any further items for discussion.  He then asked if Council 
was prepared to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council Member Rainey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Inscoe 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 7:07 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
      ATTEST: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 



 

Minute Book 42 
13 September 2012 Ride Around Minutes & Comments  

Page 1 of 3 

City Council Ride-Around  
Minutes and Comments 

13 September 2012  

 
PRESENT 
 
Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael 
Rainey, Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins, Garry Daeke, Vernon Brown and George M. Daye.          
 
ABSENT   
 
Mayor O’Geary 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Clerk Esther McCrackin, Code Compliance Director Corey 
Williams and Youth Services Program Supervisor Linwood Martin.  
 
The Ride-Around began from City Hall, 134 Rose Avenue at approximately 2:10 p.m. with Mr. 
Linwood Martin serving as chauffeur.  Code Compliance Director Corey Williams prepared a 
route that exposed Council Members to blighted areas of the City they might otherwise never 
see.  Areas were also toured that were in need of service by City crews.  Mr. Williams distributed 
a form that the PIT Team has been working on where concerns can be noted for investigation.  
He said the team is still working on the form and input would be welcome.   
 
Ward 4   
The first concern pointed out the broken window at the Tip Top Restaurant in the area of Norlina 
Road and Old Norlina Road.  It was pointed out that you can see clearly into the building where 
the interior looks like it is open for customers.  City Attorney Zollicoffer and County Attorney 
Care are preparing this property, along with several others for purchase, as approved by Council. 
 
Graffiti was pointed out in this area along with numerous other locations. 
 
Next Mr. Williams took the group toward the Bobbitt Street/Birch Street area (ETJ) as there will 
be a public hearing tomorrow on installing sewer/water on those streets. Council Member Inscoe 
pointed out an area in the David Street area that needed to be investigated for a possible water 
leak. 
 
While traveling Bobbitt St., Mr. Williams pointed out a horse in a backyard.  He said enforcing 
animal control code is difficult in this area because the owners just move the animal to another 
location.   
 
Concern was express about dead trees at North Henderson Park at the end of Bobbitt Street and 
a brush pile in the Wood Street/Robinson Street area.  Council Member Brown asked if the 



 

Minute Book 42 
13 September 2012 Ride Around Minutes & Comments  

Page 2 of 3 

tree(s) on the city owned lot on Robinson Street could be removed, saying he often sees kids 
playing in the lot. 
 
While traveling Lamb Street, City Manager Griffin said he has talked with the Tax Collector and 
it is anticipated that the inter-local agreement on jointly held properties can be brought before 
Council in October. 
 
Mr. Williams pointed out properties owned by the City or City/County throughout the tour.  He 
mentioned problems with asbestos with many of the structures and was asked frequently how 
long the structures had been in the demolition list.  Mr. Williams said some of the structures have 
been on the list for well over three years.  Council Member Coffey asked how the City came to 
own all the houses.  Mr. Williams responded through foreclosure.  Mr. Griffin said the Tax 
Collector is working with Mr. Williams.  Ms. Brooks has said she will not foreclose if there is a 
house that is in the process of condemnation.  Council Member Rainey wondered if some of the 
vacant lots in the area could be developed with duplexes.   
 
On Boddie Street, Council Member Brown asked that the debris on the side of the road be 
removed. He also expressed concern about the narrowness of streets in the neighborhood. 
 
There was also debris on 618 Adams Street, including household items, which need to be 
removed.  There was also debris left by the power company that needs to be cleaned up.   
 
Council Member Coffey asked about the policy for deposing of carpet.  She had heard if it was 
over a certain poundage the City would not remove it. 
 
Mr. Williams was able to answer many of Council’s questions regarding the plans property 
owners have for structures.  
 
East Avenue has several structures that needed to be brought up to code and 626 East Avenue 
has too many junk vehicles and specifically, someone needs to check on 604 East Avenue to see 
if they are in the process of renovating because of the mess between the houses. 
 
While traveling between Andrews and Rock Spring Street, on Clark Street,  Mr. Williams 
pointed out a City owned property that the neighbor expressed interest in buying.  He said that 
problem for many potential buyers is the frustration of having to work with both the City and 
County (as they both own the property) and expressed the importance of finalizing the agreement 
to allow the County to sell the properties with the City receiving it’s portion.  Mr. Griffin asked 
Mr. Williams to speak with the City Attorney to see if this property could be added to the 
agreement currently being worked on with the County Attorney.  Council Member Kearney 
made the comment that the monies received should remain in Code Compliance for more 
structural removals.   
 
Council Member Daeke suggested making Hatch Street a one-way street because of the 
narrowness of the street. 
 
On Vance Street Council Member Coffey asked if the fence could be repaired. Mr. Griffin said 
Code Compliance could probably cite them for a public safety violation.  Mr. Williams said he 



 

Minute Book 42 
13 September 2012 Ride Around Minutes & Comments  

Page 3 of 3 

thought there would be graffiti on the buildings on Vance Street but the owner had once again 
painted over the graffiti. 
 
Council Member Inscoe requested the City to mow on Cherry Street.   
 
Mr. Williams pointed out the properties owned by the Medina family.  These parcels recently 
came before Council and have been put on hold for demolition until December.  Another 
property (not part of the parcels before Council) owned by the Medina’s had an open front door 
and appeared vacant --- Mr. Williams said he would look into. 
 
Ward Three  
On Hillside, there was a question regarding the status of the street work that has already been 
approved but has not begun. 
 
Mr. Williams mentioned a structure that he was told prior to 2009 that he could not tear down.  
Mr. Griffin advised him to “bring it back” for reconsideration by Council. 
 
There is debris on Lucy/Arch Street that needs to be removed. 
 
It was noted the picnic table at the Owen Davis City Park needs repair.  Council Member Brown 
commented on the good job the Recreation Department has done in keeping the parks neat. 
 
Street work has been done on S. William and Council questioned when the repairs will be 
completed. 
 
Debris needs to be removed in an area off Nicholas Street. 
 
Ward One 
Concern was expressed about a tree on Cross Street. 
 
Remains of signage at Kings Daughter Park needs to be removed. 
 
Ms. Coffey asked if why the City owned properties are not better maintained.  Mr. Griffin said 
mainly because of costs.   
 
The tour concluded at this time and Mr. Martin returned Council to City Hall safely at 4:10 p.m. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
        D. Michael Rainey, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 



 

Minutes Book 42 
14 September 2012 Special Called Meeting 

Page 1 of 6 

City Council Minutes 
Special Called Meeting - DRAFT 

14 September 2012 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda G. Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, 
Vernon L. Brown., and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Attorney John Zollicoffer, Jr., City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, Assistant City Manager, 
Frank Frazier, Planning Director Erris Dunston and City Engineer Peter Sokalski. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
 
The 14 September 2012 Special Called Meeting, was called to order by Mayor James D. 
O’Geary at 12:01 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 
134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

 
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary that a quorum was present.   
 
Mayor O’Geary welcomed both Council and citizens to the public hearing. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier gave a summary of the grant by saying this is a public 
hearing for the preliminary application.  The area being considered has no sanitary and has 
failing septic systems. Mr. Frazier said Mr. Rick Seekins, Community and Economic 
Development Director from the Council of Government is present and will address a portion of 
the grant but asked Planning Director Erris Dunston to come forward first.  
 
Ms. Dunston said the CDBG Infrastructure grant can be used to install sewer lines on Birch and 
Bobbitt Streets which are in the ETJ and is an area in dire need of sanitarysewer services.  Ms. 
Dunston said the anticipated cost would be $746,000.   
 



 

Minutes Book 42 
14 September 2012 Special Called Meeting 

Page 2 of 6 

Council Members Rainey and Daeke asked if the project would be entirely in the ETJ or if any of 
it would be within City limits.  Ms. Dunston said only the ETJ. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked who would oversee the project.  Ms. Dunston replied that would 
be up to the City Manager but that the Planning Department, Code Compliance Department and 
Engineering had prepared the preliminary grant.  Mr. Kearney felt the process should be kept in-
house as much as possible. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked how these streets were selected and if there was a match required.  
Ms. Dunston said the area was one with the most severe needs and it also met the criteria of the 
grant regarding income requirements. She said since Vance County is a Tier One county, no 
match is required. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked if the households would be required to tap into the system and 
how many households are in the area.  Ms. Dunston said yes and said there are approximately 
23-25 households (one burned recently). 
 
Council Member Daeke compared the area to the Orange/Breckenridge area.  Ms. Dunston said 
that area already had water and sewer service. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the septic systems were failing in that area.  Ms. Dunston said 
yes. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked if there would be any assistance with tapping on to the system.  
Ms. Dunston said the decommissioning of the septic system would be part of the grant and 
would also include the service lines. 
 
City Attorney Zollicoffer said that per the City Code, he did not think the City could require 
households to tap onto the system but the Health Department might be able to require this action.   
 
Ms. Dunston said the last CDBG grant for the City was in 2006, and she felt this was an 
opportunity that should not be passed by.  She said there are two segments being offered by the 
North Carolina Department of Commerce Division of Community Investments for 2012 which 
Mr. Rick Seekins would address. 
 
Mr. Seekins began by reminding everyone that this is just a preliminary hearing to glean ideas 
and interest.  Then there will be a second hearing to explain how those ideas will be submitted. 
He said the State has not provided all the grant guidelines so the information is very broad 
however, there seems to be four (4) categories to be addressed: 
 
1) General housing 
2) General revitalization (rehabilitation and reconstruction) 
3) General special projects (improving public/non-profit owned structures and property) 
4) General public services (foreclosure prevention) 
 



 

Minutes Book 42 
14 September 2012 Special Called Meeting 

Page 3 of 6 

 
Council Member Coffey asked about existing programs.  Mr. Seekins said he anticipated 
partnerships to form with existing groups so expertise in areas needed would be utilized to the 
fullest. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked about recreation assistance.  Mr. Seekins said this was an area 
of consideration and elaborated by saying green areas add value to neighborhoods.  He said an 
idea had been suggested for urban gardens --- perhaps in the Orange/Breckenridge area.   
 
Council Member Daeke felt the homeless would fit into these general categories. 
 
Mr. Seekins said from the general information provided by the State, it seems the programs are 
very broad and provide a lot of flexibility. 
 
Assistant City Manager Frazier said the Engineering Department had prepared a map of the area 
for interested citizens and thought this would be a good time to show the area.  However, the 
projector was uncooperative so printed maps were distributed. 
 
Engineering Director Sokalski said this project would involve 8” sewer lines only and would  
flow into the Harris Street pump station which is currently functioning at approximately 25% 
capacity.  He said with all the contingencies added in, the project is anticipated to cost $746,700. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked if both sides of Bobbitt Street would be included in the project.  
Mr. Sokalski said yes but that only the North side of Birch would be included as those on the 
South side did not want to participate. 
 
Council Members Daeke and Kearney both asked if they were homeowners and learned that is 
was a combination of landowners and rental. 
 
With no further questions, Mayor O’Geary opened the Public Hearing by asking if there was 
anyone present who wished to speak in favor of this Grant. 
 

Elissa Yount, 216 Chavasse Avenue.  Ms. Yount commended the City for applying for 
the grant and said it was shame so many years had gone by since the last CDBG grant.  
She also expressed concerns regarding the urgency in submitting the grant today since it 
was first discussed in July.  She said when Spring Street has problems, the odor can be 
smelled throughout the area.  She also expressed concern regarding the size of the line 
and wondered if it would allow for growth.  She asked if the Transportation plan and the 
High Speed Rail plan had been considered in reviewing this project.  Ms. Yount said the 
project cost was $37,000 per house (based on the City’s estimated total cost).  She said 
that at one time the sewer lines in Kittrell had high priority and wondered why this 
project is now such a high priority.  In summary, she asked Council to look at the needs 
of the city in a logical manner and to read the application carefully before proceeding. 
 
 



 

Minutes Book 42 
14 September 2012 Special Called Meeting 

Page 4 of 6 

Gary Morgan, a resident of Drewery, with a business in Henderson (Tarheel 
Regional CDC).  Mr. Morgan distributed and read a copy of a document which 
explained how he felt it would be more affordable to salvage and repair homes rather 
than demolishing homes. A printed copy of this document is attached to these minutes 
and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

No other citizens came forward so Mayor O’Geary asked if there was anyone present who 
wished to speak against this grant. 
 

Roger Silva, 506 Franklin Lane.  Mr. Silva said he agreed with the need for the sanitary 
sewer line.  His only concern was that residents could not afford to pay for the service. 

 
No other citizen came forward so Mayor O’Geary closed the Public Hearing and asked for 
Council’s pleasure. 

 
Council Member Daeke said he would like to know how many homes would connect.  Ms. 
Dunston said they had interviewed nine (9) homes so far.  Mr. Daeke expressed concern 
regarding the cost without knowing how many would benefit.  Mayor O’Geary said the area 
needs the service. 
 
Council Member Brown said in light of Ms. Yount’s comment on the smell and the short 
window provided by the State he felt the preliminary application should be submitted. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the application could be modified and revised.  Ms. Dunston 
responded yes.  She reminded Council that this is just a preliminary application that starts the full 
the application process. 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins verified there would be time to study the application.  Ms. 
Dunston said yes.  
 
Council Member Rainey asked if there are any funds to help homeowners remove their septic 
systems.  Ms. Dunston responded the grant would include demolishing the septic tank and 
include the cost of hook-up.  She also explained that this is the last year the State will offer the 
Capacity Grant.  Mr. Seekins elaborated on this by saying in the future, the State will only assist 
municipalities that have consent orders and constant violations in operating its sewer systems.  
 
There was no further discussion.  Mayor O’Geary thanked everyone for their comments and said 
citizens are always welcome. 
 
Council Member Kearney introduced Resolution 12-83, Authorizing the Submission of a 
Preliminary Application for the North Carolina Department of Commerce 2012 CDBG 
Infrastructure Grant to Obtain Approval for Full Grant Application. Motion was seconded by  



 

Minutes Book 42 
14 September 2012 Special Called Meeting 

Page 5 of 6 

Council Member Coffey and approved by the following vote:  YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, 
Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown and Daye.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.   ABSENT:  
None 
 
Council Member Kearney asked that the City Manager obtain a consensus from Council 
regarding the Capacity Grant for the Work Session. 
 
Mr. Frazier updated Council on the status of two projects:  1) Hillside Avenue project has not 
begun due to H. G. Reynolds’ backlog of work; however, the City is pushing to have the project 
completed; and 2) a small water line is being replaced on S. Williams Street from Lehman Street 
to Champion Street, which is why the pavement is cut. 
 
With no other comment, Mayor O’Geary asked Council was prepared to adjourn.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
  
Council Member Rainey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 12:59 p.m. 
 
 
 
      _____________________________ 

       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 



 

Minutes Book 42 
14 September 2012 Special Called Meeting 

Page 6 of 6 

 



 

 

 

 

 
PROCLAMATION 12-22 

 
A PROCLAMATION of the Mayor and City Council recognizing  

National Fire Prevention Week 
October 7 – 13, 2012 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, the National Fire Protection Association was established to commemorate 

the Great Chicago Fire in 1871; and 
 
WHEREAS, President Woodrow Wilson issued the First National Fire Prevention Day 

proclamation in 1920; and 

WHEREAS, the men and women of the Henderson Fire Department are to be 
commended for their dedication and service every day to individuals in potentially 
dangerous circumstances; and 

 
WHEREAS, citizens should recognize and understand the duties, responsibilities, 

hazards, and sacrifices of the Henderson Fire Department in safeguarding life and 
property of individuals living in and around Henderson, North Carolina.   

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, I, JAMES D. O’GEARY, Mayor of 

the City of Henderson, North Carolina, along with Henderson City Council 
Members, call upon all citizens to express appreciation to these men and women 
who are willing to sacrifice their lives, if necessary, to protect and serve the City 
of Henderson.  

 Proclaimed this 24th day of September 2012. 

 

 

_________________________ 
        James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:  
  
____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 





CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 1 of 18 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

10 September 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 12-118 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-81, Authorizing the Execution of A 
Contract With The H. G. Reynolds Company for a Water Main Relocation and Tie- 
In in Conjunction With Red Bud Creek Bridge Replacement Project  (Project # BD-
5105C, WBS Elements: 45351.3.3) 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5:  Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

Systems. 
 

Recommendation: 
 
  Approval of  Resolution 12-81, Authorizing the Execution of A Contract With The H. G. 

Reynolds Company for a Water Main Relocation and Tie-In in Conjunction With Red Bud 
Bridge Replacement Project  (Project # BD-5105C, WBS Elements: 45351.3.3).  

 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) contacted the City of Henderson 
staff relative to a bridge replacement project BD-5105C, WBS Elements: 45351.3.3 over Red 
Bud Creek on SR 1120 (Vance Academy Road).  There is an existing water main extending 
along the edge of the bridge to be relocated during the construction of the new bridge.  The City 
Council approved Resolution 11-71 on 8 August 2011 authorizing the execution of a municipal 
agreement with NCDOT relative to reimbursement of the cost for the waterline relocation work. 
 
Work has been ongoing with the bridge and during construction it was discovered that there were 
changes needed within the water main of the NCDOT plan to insure that there was minimal 
disruption of service. The City obtained a quote from H.G. Reynolds Company, Inc. to compare 
to the quote the NCDOT received from the Fred Smith Company, which is the same company 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  24 Sept 12 Short Reg. Meeting 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 2 of 18 

 

performing the bridge work.  The quote obtained from Fred Smith Company, Inc. was 
$39,725.56 and the quote from H. G. Reynolds Company, Inc. was $20,990.00. 
 
The 10” bore and pipe constructed by the Fred Smith Company was installed at a cost of 
$38,000.  After discussing with NCDOT, they were agreeable to allow the City to complete the 
tie in to the existing bore and pipe after the completion of the bridge construction, since the water 
main tie-in would be outside the pavement area.  This would bring the total cost of construction 
($20,990 to H.G. Reynolds Company & $38,000 to Fred Smith Company) for a total project cost 
of $58,990. The original cost estimate prepared by the NCDOT to perform this work was 
$119,034, so any savings, once this project is complete, could be returned to capital reserve or 
utilized for other water main replacement needs. 
 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 12-81 
2. Resolution 11-71 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 3 of 18 

 

RESOLUTION   12-81 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT  WITH H.G. 
REYNOLDS COMPANY, INC. FOR WATER MAIN RELOCATION AND TIE IN IN 
CONJUNCTION WITH RED BUD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT (BD-5105C 

WBS ELEMENTS: 45351.3.3) 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2012 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, one of the Key Strategic Objectives is addressed by this Resolution as follows:  

KSO 5:  To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmental Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the NCDOT has prepared and adopted plans to make certain street and highway 

improvements including project BD-5105C, a bridge replacement project on Vance 
Academy Road in Vance County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson (City) has an existing water main that is located within the 

NCDOT right of way that must be relocated in conjunction with the project;  and 
 
WHEREAS, upon completion of the project, the City is required to reimburse the NCDOT 100% 

of the cost for relocating the water line; and 
 
WHEREAS,  during construction it was discovered that there were changes needed to the design 

of the water main to insure that there was minimal disruption of service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and NCDOT received a quote from Fred Smith Company and H. G. 

Reynolds Company to perform said work in accordance with the changes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the quote received from H. G. Reynolds Company, Inc. to perform said work was 

the lowest quote. 
 
NOW  THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Henderson, North 

Carolina that it does hereby 1) authorize the execution of the contract with H. G. 
Reynolds Company Inc. in the amount of $20,990, said agreement being more fully 
articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution; and 2) authorize the Mayor to execute 
said agreement with H. G. Reynolds Company, Inc. 

 
 

 

 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 4 of 18 

 

The foregoing Resolution 12-81, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
**** on this the **** day of ------- 2012:  YES:  . NO  .  ABSTAIN:  .  ABSENT:  . 

_____________________________ 
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST:    
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Legal Form: 
 
______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 42,  p. ***. 
 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 5 of 18 

 

 

CONTRACT 

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this     day of    , in the 
year 2012 by and between the City of Henderson, North Carolina, party of the first part, 
hereinafter called the Owner, and  Kenneth A. Long    of    
 H.G. Reynolds Company, Inc. , party of the second part, hereinafter called the Contractor. 
 
 WITNESSETH 

THAT, WHEREAS, a Contract for: 
 
   Red Bud Creek Watermain Replacement Project      
 
has recently been awarded to the Contractor by the Owner at and for a sum equal to the 
aggregate cost of the work to be done and labor, materials, equipment, apparatus and supplies 
furnished at the prices and rates respectively named therefore, in the Proposal attached hereto: 
 
Total Bid Accepted: $ 20,990.00   
 
AND WHEREAS, it was one of the conditions of said Award that a formal Contract should be 
executed by and between the Owner and the Contractor, evidencing the terms of said award, 
and that the Contractor shall commence the work to be performed under this agreement on a 
date to be specified in a written order of the Owner, and shall fully complete all work hereunder 
within  30  Consecutive Calendar Days, of the date specified in the Notice to Proceed. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, THIS CONTRACT FURTHER WITNESSETH THAT, the Contractor doth 
hereby covenant and agree with the Owner that they will and faithfully perform and execute 
such work and furnish such labor, materials, equipment, apparatus and supplies, in accordance 
with each and every one of the conditions, covenants, stipulations, terms and provisions 
contained in the Specifications and in accordance with the Plans, at and for a sum equal to the 
aggregate cost of the work done and labor, materials, equipment, apparatus and supplies 
furnished at the prices and rates respectively named therefore in the Proposal attached hereto, 
and will well and faithfully comply with and perform each and every obligation imposed upon 
them by said Plans and Specifications and the terms of said Award. 
 
The Contractor shall promptly make payments to all persons supplying materials in the 
prosecution of the work, and to all laborers and others employed thereon. 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for all damages to the property of the Owner that may be 
consequent upon the normal procedure of their work or that may be caused by or result from the 
negligence of the Contractor, his, its or their employees or agents, during the progress of, or 
connected with the prosecution of the work, whether within the limits of the work or elsewhere.  
The Contractor must restore all property so injured to a condition as good as it was when the 
Contractor entered upon the work. 
 
The Contractor shall furthermore be responsible for, and be required to make good at his, its or 
their expense, any and all damages of whatever nature, to persons or property, arising during 

Resolution 12-81 
Attachment A 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 6 of 18 

 

the period of this Contract, caused by carelessness, neglect, or want of due precaution on the 
part of the Contractor, shall also indemnify and save harmless the Owner, and the officers and 
agents thereof, from all claims, suits, and proceedings of every name and description which 
may be brought against the Owner, or the officers and agents thereof, for or on account of any 
injuries or damages to persons or property received or sustained by any person or persons, firm 
or corporation, or by or in consequence of any materials or workmanship in its construction, or 
by or on account of any accident, or of any other act of omission of the said Contractor, his, its 
or their agents, employees, servants or workmen. 
 
It is agreed and understood that the Notice to Bidders, Information to Bidders, Instruction to 
Bidders, General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, Special Project Conditions, Technical 
Specifications together with the enumerated Addenda, if any, the Proposal, and the Plans 
and/or Drawings are a part and parcel to this Contract to the same extent as if incorporated 
herein in full. 
 
It is further mutually agreed between the parties hereto that if, at any time after the execution of 
this Agreement and the performance and payment bonds (or other approved security) hereto 
attached for its faithful performance and payment, the Owner shall deem the surety or sureties 
upon such Bonds to be unsatisfactory, or if, for any reason, such Bonds cease to be adequate 
to cover the performance or payment of the work, the Contractor shall, at his, its or their 
expense, within five (5) days after the receipt of notice from the Owner to do so, furnish an 
additional Bond or Bonds or other approved security in such form and amount and with such 
surety or sureties as shall be satisfactory to the Owner.  In such event no further payment to the 
Contractor shall be deemed to be due under this agreement until such new or additional security 
for the faithful performance and payment of the work shall be furnished in a manner and form 
satisfactory to the Owner. 
 
And the Owner does hereby covenant and agree with the Contractor that it will pay to the 
Contractor, when due and payable under the terms of the Contract Documents and the Award, 
the sum mentioned above, and that it will well and faithfully comply with and perform each and 
every obligation imposed upon it by said Contract Documents and the terms of said Award. 
 
Completion for above listed item(s) shall be defined as completely installed including all 
associated appurtenances, tested and ready for the intended service. 
 

ANTI-DISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY  

All funds will be distributed in accordance with all anti-discrimination and equal opportunity 
statutes, regulations, and Executive Orders in accordance to local, state and federal regulations. 

HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS 

Please check the following: 

Is your organization registered with HUB office? Yes   No   

Is your organization a minority contractor, small contractor, physically handicapped contractor, a 
woman contractor, a disabled business enterprise, or a non-profit work center for the blind and 
severely disabled?      



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 7 of 18 

 

Yes   No   
FURTHER AGREEMENTS 
  See Attached HG Reynolds letter dated August 24, 2012 with subject 10” Watermain  
  (See Contract Attachment 1)         
               
 

 

 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 8 of 18 

 

In Testimony Whereof, of the City of Henderson has caused these presents to be signed in its 
name by its Mayor and its Corporate seal to be hereto affixed and attested by the City Clerk, all by 
order of the City Council of the City of Henderson and said party of the second part, acting under 
and by virtue of the Authority in them vested, have hereunto set their hand seal, the day and year 
first written above. 
 

OWNER: 
 
ATTEST     THE CITY OF HENDERSON, NORTH CAROLINA  
 
 
     (SEAL)   BY         
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk  James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
ATTEST:     H.G. REYNOLDS COMPANY, INC.  (SEAL)  
       
 
   
         BY         
Witness Kenneth A. Long, III, Vice President  
 (If contractor is a corporation, a partnership, or a joint 

venture, attach evidence of authority to sign.) 
  

 
FINANCIAL CERTIFICATION 
 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
                                    
Katherine C. Brafford, CPA  Date    
 
 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 9 of 18 

 

CERTIFICATE OF ATTORNEY 
 

I hereby certify that I am the duly appointed attorney for the Owner of the Project and that I have 
examined the foregoing instrument and Bond, and insurance documents and I have approved the 
same as being legal and in proper form. 

 

 This     day of     , 20  . 

 

              
       John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 10 of 18 

 

 

Contract 
Attachment #1 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 11 of 18 

 

RESOLUTION   11—71 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A UTILITY AGREEMENT 
WITH THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (NCDOT) 

 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2010 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS,  one of the Key Strategic Objectives is addressed by this Resolution as follows:  KSO 

5:  To  Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmental Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the NCDOT has prepared and adopted plans to make certain street and highway 

improvements including project BD-5105C, a bridge replacement project on Vance 
Academy Road in Vance County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson (City) has an existing water main that is located within the 

NCDOT Right of Way that must be relocated in conjunction with the project;  and 
 
WHEREAS, upon completion of the project, the City is required to reimburse the NCDOT 100% 

of the cost for relocating the water line. 
 
 
NOW  THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Henderson, North 

Carolina that it does hereby 1) authorize the approval of the Utility Agreement with 
NCDOT, said agreement being more fully articulated in Attachment No. 1 to this 
Resolution; and 2) authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement with NCDOT. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 11—71, upon motion of Council Member Kearney and second by 
Council Member Inscoe and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes 
and was APPROVED on this the 8th day of August 2011:  YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, 
Daye, Kearney and Coffey. NO:  Daeke.  ABSENT:  Davis. 

 

_____________________________ 
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST:    
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved as to Legal Form: 
 
______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 42,  p. ***. 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 12 of 18 

 

 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 13 of 18 

 

 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 14 of 18 

 

 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 15 of 18 

 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 16 of 18 

 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 17 of 18 

 



CAF 12-118:  24 September 12 Short Regular Meeting 
Page 18 of 18 

 

 



 1

 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
10 September 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12—117 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-80, Appointments to the Henderson 
Zoning Board of Adjustment Committee, and Henderson Recreation and Parks 
Commission. 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 
Recommendation: 
 
  Approval of Resolution 12-80, Appointments to the Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustment 

Committee, and Henderson Recreation and Parks Commission. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Boards and Commissions’ Committee (B&CC) met on 6 September 2012 to review 
applications on various committees and recommends the following appointments: 
 
Recreation and Parks Commission 
 1.  Mr. Jay Arthur Andrews – Appoint to serve a three-year term expiring on 30 June 2015. 
 2.  Mr. Daniel Young, Jr. – Appoint to serve a three-year term expiring on 30 June 2015. 
 3.  Mr. Vernon Brown – Appoint to serve a three-year term expiring on 30 June 2015. 
 
Board of Adjustment 
 1.  Ms. Sara Coffey – Reappoint to serve as a full member with a three-year term expiring 

on 30 June 2015. 
  
Enclosures: 
 1.   Resolution 12-80 
 2.   Individual Applications   

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

       
 
 
 
Agenda Item:  
 
Council Meeting: 24 Sept 12 Short Meeting   



 2

RESOLUTION 12-80 
 

A RESOLUTION MAKING APPOINTMENTS TO THE FOLLOWING 
COMMITTEES/COMMISSIONS: HENDERSON ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

AND HENDERSON RECREATION AND PARKS COMMISSION 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) has created several boards and commissions 
as a means to include citizen input to and participation within the governance process; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Council periodically appoints individuals to serve on said boards and 
commissions; and 

WHEREAS, there are vacancies on the following Committees/Commissions: Henderson Zoning 
Board of Adjustment and the Henderson Recreation and Parks Commission; and 

WHEREAS, applications have been received and reviewed by the Council’s Boards and 
Commissions’ Committee for available positions. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 
DOES HEREBY appoint the following individuals: 

1. Ms. Sara Coffey, a city resident living at 339 W. Young Ave. to serve on the Henderson 
Zoning Board of Adjustment as a full member with a term expiring 30 June 2015; and 

2. Mr. Jay Arthur Andrews, a city resident living at 1107 Hargrove St., to serve on the 
Henderson Recreation and Parks Commission for a three-year term expiring on 30 June 
2015. 

3. Mr. Vernon Brown, a city resident living at 915 Hicks St., to serve on the Henderson 
Recreation and Parks Commission for a three-year term expiring on 30 June 2015. 

4. Mr. Daniel Young, Sr., a city resident living at 221 W. Belle St., to serve on the 
Henderson Recreation and Parks Commission for a three-year term expiring on 30 June 
2015. 



 3

The foregoing Resolution 12-80, upon motion of Council Member ***and second by Council Member 
***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote during a regularly scheduled and open meeting, 
received the following votes and was *** on this the 24th  day of September 2012:  YES:.  NO: None.  
ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT:. 
 
 

________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
_______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p ***; CAF 12-117 



 4

 

 



 5

 



 6

 



 7

 



 8

 



 9

 



 10

 



 11

 



  

                   

                Last Updated: 9/19/2012 12:12 PM 

Date Time Event Location 

Sept 28th  10:00 AM 
Henderson-Vance E911  
Advisory Board Meeting 

E 911 Operation Center 

Oct 1st 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Oct 2nd  3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustments City Council Chambers 

Oct 8th 9:30 AM KLRWS Advisory Board Meeting 
City Hall Large Conference 

Room 

Oct 8th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Oct 9th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

Oct 11th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission 
Aycock Recreation Center 

Oct 18th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Oct 22nd Cancelled 
City Council Meeting 

CANCELLED 
CANCELLED DUE TO 
NCLM CONFERENCE 

Nov 5th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Nov 6th 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustments City Council Chambers 

Nov 8th 12:00 PM Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 
Commission 

Aycock Recreation Center 

Nov 12th 5:00 PM Library Board of Trustees 
H. Leslie Perry Memorial  

Library Board Room 

Nov 12th 
 

 

Happy Veterans Day    

Nov 13th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

Nov 15th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Nov 22nd 
& 

Nov 23rd  

CITY HALL CLOSED 
 Thursday the 22nd  & Friday the 23rd 

HAPPY THANKSGIVING 

Nov 26th 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow 
City Council Chambers 

Nov 30th 10:00 AM 
Henderson-Vance E911  
Advisory Board Meeting 

E 911 Operation Center 

Dec 3rd 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Dec 4th 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustments City Council Chambers 

Dec 10th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Dec 11th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

Meetings and Events Calendar 

City Council Meeting 
Cancelled

City Hall Closed 
Veterans Day



 

24 September 2012 Work Session Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Work Session 
Monday, 24 September 2012 Immediately Following Regular Session 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
 

Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 
 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Sr. 
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 
Councilmember Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Vernon L. Brown 
Councilmember George M. Daye 

 
City Officials 
 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
IV. REGULAR WORK SESSION  
 
 a)   Beyond the Barriers Outreach Program Presentation.   [See Notebook Tab 6] 
 
 b) Consideration of FY13 Airport Funding. [See Notebook Tab 7] 
 
  c) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-52, Amending the Provisions for Cuts and 

Excavations of Streets and for Right of Way Management.  (CAF 12-95)  
  [See Notebook Tab 8] 
 
  ●  Ordinance 12-52 



 

24 September 2012 Work Session Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 d) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-82, Amendments to City Administrative Policy 
4.13, The Pay Plan and 10.01, Types of Separation.  (CAF 12-119)  [See Notebook Tab 9] 

 
  ●  Resolution 12-82 
 
 e) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-84, Supporting the Completion of the Widening 

of SR 1228 (Chavasse Avenue) From US 1 Business (Raleigh Road) to SR 1143 (S. William 
Street).  (CAF 12-124)  [See Notebook Tab 10] 

 
● Resolution 12-84 

 
 f) Consideration of Approval of 1) Ordinance 12-71, FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #13, 

Amending Fund 73: Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund; and 2) Resolution 12-A-
16, Authorizing an Amendment to the Capital Reserves Economic Development Fund in 
Regards to the North Carolina RURAL Center and Golden Leaf Foundation Grants’ 
Applications for Water Line for Economic Development Prospect 12-2; and Authorizing an 
Inter-Local Agreement with Vance County for Eligibility for Said Mentioned Grants. (CAF 
12-126)  [See Notebook Tab 11]  

 
 Ordinance 12-71 
 Resolution 12-A-16 

 
 g) Consideration of Approval of CM12-13, Consideration of Meal Tax Authority via Local Act 

of General Assembly.   [See Notebook Tab 12]  
 

 CM12-13 
 
V.    ADJOURNMENT 





CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 1 of 28 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
10 September 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D.O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  12-95 
            Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-52, Amending the Provisions for Cuts 
            and Excavations of Streets and for Right of Way Management. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:  
 
 KSO 5– Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure: To provide reliable, dependable and 

environmentally compliant infrastructure systems. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-52, Amending the Provisions for Cuts and Excavations of Streets 

and for Right of Way Management. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Right-of-Way Management Ordinance (City Code 16A) was last approved in March 2007 
and was written to regulate development and use of the City’s right-of-way areas by contractors, 
utility providers with and without franchises.  The current ordinance was hard to follow on who 
was being charged fees, fees were difficult to calculate and the permitting requirements 
excessive.  This was realized during the current work being performed for fiber optic cable 
installation being done by MCNC through sections of the City. 
 
Due to this, City Attorney Zollicoffer reviewed the ordinance and provided a moderate and 
easier to understand schedule of fees as well as clarifications for dealing with the permitting and 
some other minor changes.  The staff has reviewed the changes, are in agreement with those 
changes and recommends approval of the modification to the right-of-way ordinance, Section 
16A, of the City Code. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Ordinance 12-52 
2. Original City Code 16A 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  24 Sept.12 Work Session 
    



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 2 of 28 

 

ORDINANCE  12-52 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROVISIONS FOR CUTS AND EXCAVATIONS 
OF STREETS AND FOR RIGHT OF WAY MANAGEMENT 

 
The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 

 
Section 1.  That Section 16-24 of the City Code be amended to read as follows: 
 

“Sec. 16-24.  Same – Fees.    
 
  See Section 16A-11 and other provisions of Chapter 16A.” 
 
Section 2.  That Section 16A-03 be amended by deleting the subparagraphs entitled “Five-year 
project plan” and “Obstruction permit fee”. 
 
Section 3.  That Section 16A-07 be amended by replacing the “;and” with a period at the end of 
Subparagraph (1) under “Operations”, by deleting subparagraph (2) under “Operations” and by 
deleting the last paragraph of Section 16A-07 relating to Five-year projects. 
 
Section 4.  That Section 16A-11 Permit Fees be amended by deleting Subparagraphs (a), (b), (c), 
(d), (e), (f), (i) and (j) together with footnotes 1, 2 and 3, and by inserting in lieu thereof the 
following: 
 

“(a)  Excavation permit fee.  There shall be a permit fee charged by the City of 
Henderson in the sum of $150.00 for administration of the permit.  In addition where any 
street or sidewalk is cut (except where the same is made in conjunction with a water or 
sewer tap) the following fee shall be charged as an excavation fee: 
 
Concrete base more than four inches thick……………………………………     $600.00 
Concrete base four inches thick or less……………………………………….        500.00 
Asphalt street with no concrete base………………………………………….        250.00 
Dirt street……………………………………………………………………...        150.00 
Paved sidewalk (except Garnett Street between Spring and Church Streets)…       150.00 
Garnett Street sidewalk between Spring and Church Streets………………….       250.00 
Curb and gutter cut……………………………………………………………        250.00 
Dirt sidewalk………………………………………………………………….          50.00 
(Code 1967, § 16-24; 6-25-73; 6-23-80, § 4; 6-29-89, § 1; Ord. of 11-26-01, § 1) 
 

Section 5.  That Subparagraph (g) under Section 16A-11 be renumbered as Subparagraph (b), 
and that Subparagraph (h) under said 16A-11 be renumbered as Subparagraph (c). 
 
Section 6.  That Section 16A-12 be amended by deleting the Overlays box together with the 
Hypothetical example under Footnote 4 in Subparagraph (4) of the same so that Footnote 4 and 
Footnote 5 are adjacent to each other. 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 3 of 28 

 

Section 7.  That Section 16A-12 is amended by adding the words “(plus 15% administrative and 
managerial fee)” following the words “right of way” in Section 16A-12(e). 
 
Section 8.   That the words “a penalty pay double” appearing in Section 16A-19(b) be amended 
to read “a civil penalty pay triple”. 
 
Section 9.  That the following be added as an additional sentence in Section 16A-22(a) (relative 
to mapping information required): 
 

“At the City’s request, maps of all prior encroachments by the encroacher shall be 
provided to the City if the same are reasonably available.” 
 

Section 10.  That the following be added as an additional sentence at the end of Section 16A-
22(b) (relative to failure to comply): 
 

“Such failure shall, after thirty days notice from the City, also subject said violator with 
the civil penalties set forth in Section 16A-30.” 

 
Section 11.  That in Section 16A-27(d) (relative to regulatory fees and reimbursements not a 
tax), the words “or franchise fees or taxes” be added at the end of the phrase “local City and 
County taxes,”. 
 
Section 12.  That Section 16A-28(i) (relative to general liability insurance) be amended by 
deleting the words “Until otherwise increased by the City,” and inserting the following words  in 
lieu thereof “Until otherwise determined by the City Manager,”. 
 
Section 13.  That the heading for Section 16A-30 be amended to read:  “Civil Penalty 
Provisions”. 
 
Section 14.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of 
its passage. 

 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-______, upon motion of Council member ____________ 

and seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll 
call vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the 
____ day of _______________, 2012:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 
      ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 4**, p. **. 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 4 of 28 

 

_______________________________________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-52, An 
Ordinance Amending The Provisions For Cuts And Excavations Of Streets And For Right Of 
Way Management, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on **  ** 20** 
(See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book # 8, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 5 of 28 

 

Chapter 16A - RIGHT-OF-WAY MANAGEMENT 
 

Sec. 16A-01. - Findings, purpose and intent.  
To provide for the health, safety and welfare of its citizens, and to ensure the integrity 
of its streets and the appropriate use of the right-of-way, the city strives to keep its 
right-of-way in a state of good repair and free from unnecessary encumbrances.  
Accordingly, the city hereby enacts this new chapter of this code relating to right-of-
way permits and administration. This chapter imposes reasonable regulation on the 
placement and maintenance of facilities and equipment currently within its right-of-
way or to be placed therein at some future time. Under this chapter, persons 
excavating and obstructing the right-of-way will bear financial responsibility for their 
work. Finally, this chapter provides for recovery of actual and projected costs from 
persons using the public right-of-way.  
This chapter shall be interpreted as consistent with North Carolina Statutes and the 
other laws governing applicable rights of the city and users of the right-of-way. This 
chapter shall not be interpreted to limit the regulatory and police powers of the city to 
adopt and enforce general ordinances necessary to protect the health, safety and 
welfare of the public.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-02. - Election to manage the right-of-way.  
Pursuant to the authority granted to the city under state and federal statutory, 
administrative and common law, the city hereby elects, pursuant G.S. 160A-273 and 
160A-296(a), to manage public right-of-way within its jurisdiction.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-03. - Definitions.  
The following definitions apply in this chapter of this Code. References hereafter to 
"sections" are, unless otherwise specified, references to sections in this chapter. 
Defined terms remain defined terms whether or not capitalized.  
Abandoned facility means a facility no longer in service or physically disconnected 
from a portion of the operating facility, or from any other facility, that is in use or still 
carries service.  
Applicant means any person requesting permission to excavate or obstruct a right-of-
way.  
City means the city of Henderson, North Carolina. For purposes of section 16A-28, 
city means its elected officials, officers, employees and agents.  
Commission means the North Carolina Public Utilities Commission.  
Completion certificate means a certificate provided by the city following its 
acceptance that the work performed meets all city right-of-way requirements and 
standards.  
Congested right-of-way means a crowded condition in the subsurface of the public 
right-of-way that occurs when the maximum lateral spacing between existing 
underground facilities does not allow for construction of new underground facilities 
without using hand digging to expose the existing lateral facilities over a continuous 
length in excess of five hundred (500) feet.  
Construction performance bond means any of the following forms of security as 
stipulated by the city:  

CAF 12-95 
Attachment #2 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 6 of 28 

 

(1) Individual project bond; 
(2) Cash deposit; 
(3) Security of a form listed; 
(4) Letter of credit, in a form acceptable to the city; 
(5) Self insurance, in a form acceptable to the city; 
(6) A blanket bond for projects within the city, or other form of construction bond, 
for a time specified and in a form acceptable to the city.  
Degradation means a decrease in the useful life of the right-of-way caused by 
excavation in or disturbance of the right-of-way, resulting in the need to reconstruct 
such right-of-way earlier than would be required if the excavation or disturbance did 
not occur.  
Degradation cost means the cost to achieve a level of restoration as determined by the 
city at the time the permit is issued.  
Degradation fee(s) means the estimated fee(s) established at the time of permitting by 
the city to recover costs associated with the decrease in the useful life of the right-of-
way caused by the excavation, and which equals the degradation cost.  
Department means the department of public works of the city.  
Director means the director of the department of public utilities of the city, or her or 
his designee.  
Delay penalty is the penalty imposed as a result of unreasonable delays in right-of-
way excavation, obstruction, patching, or restoration as established by permit.  
Emergency means a condition that (1) poses a danger to life or health, or of a 
significant loss of property; or (2) requires immediate repair or replacement of 
facilities to restore service to a customer.  
Equipment means any tangible asset used to install, repair, or maintain facilities in 
any right-of-way.  
Excavate means to dig into or in any way remove or physically disturb or penetrate 
any part of a right-of-way.  
Excavation permit means the permit that, pursuant to this chapter, must be obtained 
before a person may Excavate in a right-of-way. An excavation permit allows the 
holder to excavate that part of the right-of-way described in such permit.  
Excavation permit fee means money paid to the city by an applicant for an excavation 
permit to cover the city's costs and expenses.  
Facility or facilities means any tangible asset in the right-of-way required to provide 
utility service.  
Five-year project plan shows projects adopted by the city for construction within the 
next five (5) years.  
Local representative means a local person or persons, or designee of such person or 
persons, authorized by a registrant to accept service and to make decisions for that 
registrant regarding all matters within the scope of this chapter.  
Management costs means the actual costs the city incurs in managing its right-of-
way, including such costs, if incurred, as those associated with registering applicants; 
issuing, processing, and verifying right-of-way permit applications; inspecting job 
sites and restoration projects; maintaining, supporting, protecting, or moving user 
facilities during right-of-way work; determining the adequacy of right-of-way 
restoration; restoring work inadequately performed after providing notice and the 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 7 of 28 

 

opportunity to correct the work; and revoking right-of-way permits. Management 
costs do not include payment by a telecommunications or other right-of-way user for 
the use of the right-of-way, the fees and cost of litigation relating to the interpretation 
of this chapter or the city fees and costs related to appeals taken pursuant to section 
16A-32 of this chapter.  
NCDOT ROW policies means the Policies and Procedures For Accommodating 
Utilities On Highway Rights-of-Way, published by the North Carolina Division of 
Highways, January 1, 1975, revised April 1, 1993 as shall be amended from time to 
time.  
Obstruct means to place any tangible object in a right-of-way so as to hinder free and 
open passage over that or any part of the right-of-way.  
Obstruction permit means the permit which, pursuant to this chapter, must be 
obtained before a person may obstruct any portion of a right-of-way, allowing the 
holder to hinder free and open passage over the specified portion of that right-of-way, 
for the duration specified therein.  
Obstruction permit fee means money paid to the city by a permittee to cover the costs 
as provided in section 16A-11.  
Patch or patching means a method of pavement replacement that is temporary in 
nature. A patch consists of (1) the compaction of the subbase and aggregate base, and 
(2) the replacement, in kind, of the existing pavement for a minimum of two (2) feet 
beyond the edges of the excavation in all directions. A patch is considered full 
restoration only when the pavement is included in the city's adopted replacement 
plan.  
Pavement means any type of improved surface that is within the public right-of-way 
and that is paved or otherwise constructed with bituminous, concrete, aggregate, or 
gravel.  
Permit means authority granted by the city to place specific facilities in the "right-of-
way" under the city's jurisdiction pursuant to G.S. 160A-296 and 160A-273.  
Permittee means any person to whom a permit to excavate or obstruct a right-of-way 
has been granted by the city under this chapter.  
Person means an individual or entity subject to the laws and rules of this state, 
however organized, whether public or private, whether domestic or foreign, whether 
for profit or nonprofit, and whether natural, corporate, or political.  
Probation means the status of a person that has not complied with the conditions of 
this chapter.  
Probationary period means one year from the date that a person has been notified in 
writing that they have been put on probation.  
Registrant means any person who (1) has or seeks to have its equipment or facilities 
located in any public right-of-way, or (2) in any way occupies or uses, or seeks to 
occupy or use, the right-of-way (other than as normal traffic flow) or place its 
facilities or equipment in the right-of-way. This does not include persons properly 
temporarily utilizing a designated parking space for its respective designated use.  
Restore or restoration means the process by which an excavated right-of-way and 
surrounding area, including pavement and foundation, is returned to the same 
condition and life expectancy that existed before excavation.  



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 8 of 28 

 

Restoration cost means the amount of money paid to the city by a permittee to 
achieve the level of restoration prescribed by the city.  
Right-of-way or public right-of-way or "rights-of-way means the area on, below, or 
above a public roadway, highway, street, cartway, bicycle lane or public sidewalk in 
which the city has an interest, including other dedicated rights-of-way for travel 
purposes and utility easements of the city.  
Right-of-way permit means either the excavation permit or the obstruction permit, or 
both, depending on the context, required by this chapter.  
Right-of-way user means a person owning or controlling a facility in a public right-of-
way that is used or intended to be used for providing a public or private utility 
service, and who has a right under law, franchise, certificate or ordinance to use the 
public right-of-way.  
Service or utility service as defined in G.S. 62-3(27) and also means any service 
furnished by a public utility, including any commodity furnished as a part of such 
service and any ancillary service or facility used in connection with such service.  
Supplementary application means an application made to excavate or obstruct more 
of the right-of-way than allowed in, or to extend, a permit that had already been 
issued.  
Temporary surface means the compaction of subbase and aggregate base and 
replacement, in kind, of the existing pavement only to the edges of the excavation. It 
is temporary in nature except when the replacement is of pavement included in the 
city's two (2) year plan, in which case it is considered full restoration.  
Trench means an excavation extending on or across the public right-of-way.  
Telecommunication right-of-way user means a person owning or controlling a facility 
in the right-of-way, or seeking to own or control a facility in the right-of-way, that is 
used or is intended to be used for transporting public or private telecommunication or 
other voice or data information. For purposes of this chapter, a cable system defined 
under 47 U.S.C. § 522 is not a telecommunication facility.  
Underground damage prevention act as defined by G.S. 87-100 refers to the rules and 
regulations to which right-of-way users must comply when installing or working 
around underground facilities.  
Underground utility as defined in G.S. 87-101(12) refers to any underground line, 
system or facility used for producing, storing, conveying, transmitting, or distributing 
communications or telecommunications, electricity, gas, petroleum and petroleum 
products, coal slurry, hazardous liquids, water under pressure, steam, or sanitary 
sewage, or for providing storm sewers or drainage systems but not including traffic 
signal control cables and vehicle detection cables of the North Carolina Department 
of Transportation.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-04. - Administration.  
The director of public utilities is the principal city official responsible for the 
administration of the right-of-way, right-of-way permits, and the ordinances related 
thereto. The director may delegate any or all of the duties hereunder.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-05. - Registration and right-of-way occupancy.  



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 9 of 28 

 

(a) Registration. Each person or entity who occupies, uses, or seeks to occupy or use, 
any public right-of-way or place any equipment or facilities in or on any public right-
of-way, including persons or entities with installation and maintenance 
responsibilities by lease, sublease or assignment, must register with the city. 
Registration will consist of providing application information and paying a 
registration fee.  
(b) Registration prior to work. No person may construct, install, repair, remove, 
relocate, or perform any work on, or use any facilities or any part thereof in any 
public right-of-way without first being registered with the city.  
(c) Continuing responsibilities. Registrant and any permittee acting on its behalf must 
comply with the national electrical safety code (NESC) and the national electric code 
(NEC) as well as with other federal, state and local regulations.  
(d) Exceptions. Without relinquishing or modifying the city's rights of control of its 
public rights of way, nothing herein shall be otherwise construed to limit the rights of 
persons to plant or maintain boulevard plantings or gardens in the area of the right-of-
way between their property and the street curb. Persons planting or maintaining 
boulevard plantings or gardens shall not be deemed to use or occupy the right-of-way, 
and shall not be required to obtain any permits or satisfy any other requirements for 
planting or maintaining such boulevard plantings or gardens under this chapter; 
provided the city shall retain the rights to cut, remove, or otherwise regulate such 
plantings, gardens, etc. However, nothing herein relieves a person from complying 
with the provisions of the G.S. ch. 87, art. 3, "Underground Damage Prevention Act."  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-06. - Registration information.  
(a) Information required. The information provided to the city at the time of 
registration shall include, but not be limited to each of the following:  
(1) Each registrant's name, N.C. One-Call registration certificate number (if 
applicable), address and email address if applicable, and telephone and facsimile 
numbers.  
(2) The name, address (e-mail address, if applicable), and telephone and facsimile 
numbers of a local representative. The local representative or designee shall be 
available at all times. Current information regarding how to contact the local 
representative in an emergency shall be provided at the time of registration.  
(3) A certificate of insurance: 
a. Verifying that an insurance policy has been issued to the registrant by an 
insurance company licensed to do business in the State of North Carolina, or a form 
of self insurance acceptable to the city;  
b. Verifying that the registrant is insured against claims for personal injury, 
including death, as well as claims for property damage in the minimum amounts set 
forth in section 16A-29, arising out of the (i) use and occupancy of the right-of-way 
by the registrant, its officers, agents, employees and permittees, and (ii) placement 
and use of facilities and equipment in the right-of-way by the registrant, its officers, 
agents, employees and permittees, including, but not limited to, protection against 
liability arising from completed operations, damage of underground facilities and 
collapse of property;  



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 10 of 28 

 

c. If the registrant is a public utility, franchise holder, or the grantee of a public 
easement, naming the city as an additional insured as to whom the coverages required 
herein are in force and applicable and for whom defense will be provided as to all 
such coverage; and requiring the city to be notified thirty (30) calendar days in 
advance of cancellation of the policy or material modification of a coverage term;  
(4) Certificates indicating comprehensive liability coverage, motor vehicle liability 
coverage, required workers compensation, and umbrella coverage in amounts 
hereafter in this chapter sufficient to protect the city and the public and to carry out 
the purposes established in 16A-29 and policies of this chapter. The city may require 
a copy of the actual insurance policies.  
(5) If the registrant is a corporation, a limited liability company or other legal entity, a 
copy of a current certificate of good standing issued by the North Carolina Secretary 
of State.  
(6) A copy of the registrant's certificate of authority from the North Carolina Public 
Utilities Commission, North Carolina Secretary of State or other applicable state or 
federal agency, whenever the registrant is lawfully required to have such certificate 
from said commission or other state or federal agency.  
(b) Notice of changes. The registrant shall keep all of the information listed above 
current at all times by providing to the city information as to changes within fifteen 
(15) calendar days following the date on which the registrant has knowledge of any 
change.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-07. - Reporting obligations.  
Operations. Each registrant shall, at the time of registration and by December 1 of 
each year, file with the city a construction and major maintenance plan showing all 
anticipated construction and maintenance for said registrant's underground facilities 
within the city. Such plan shall be submitted using a format designated by the city and 
shall contain the information determined by the city to be useful or necessary to 
facilitate the coordination and reduction in the frequency of excavations and 
obstructions of right-of-way.  
The plan shall include, but not be limited to, the following information:  
(1) The locations and the estimated beginning and ending dates of all projects to be 
commenced during the next calendar year ("next year projects"); and . 
(2) To the extent known, the tentative locations and estimated beginning and ending 
dates for all projects contemplated for the five (5) years following the next calendar 
year ("five-year projects").  
By January 1 of each year, the city will have available for inspection by the director 
of public utilities' office, a composite list of all registrant construction and 
maintenance plans. All registrants are responsible for keeping the city informed of the 
current status of their respective list.  
By February 1 of each year, each registrant shall update next year projects or five (5) 
year projects, and must notify the city and all other registrants of these changes.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-08. - Permit requirement.  



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 11 of 28 

 

(a) Permit required. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, no person may 
obstruct or excavate any right-of-way without first having obtained the appropriate 
right-of-way permit from the city to do so.  
(1) Excavation permit. An excavation permit is required by a registrant to excavate 
that part of the right-of-way described in such permit and to hinder free and open 
passage over the specified portion of the right-of-way by placing facilities described 
therein, to the extent and for the duration specified therein.  
(2) Obstruction permit. An obstruction permit is required by a registrant to hinder 
free and open passage over the specified portion of right-of-way by placing 
Equipment described therein on the right-of-way, to the extent and for the duration 
specified therein. An obstruction permit is not required if a person already possesses a 
valid excavation permit for the same project.  
(b) Permit extensions. No person may excavate or obstruct the right-of-way beyond 
the date or dates specified in the permit unless (i) such person makes a supplementary 
application for another right-of-way permit before the expiration of the initial permit, 
and (ii) a new permit or permit extension is granted.  
(c) Delay penalty. The city shall establish and impose a delay penalty for 
unreasonable delays in right-of-way excavation, obstruction, patching, or restoration. 
The delay penalty shall be one hundred dollars ($100.00) per day with each day or 
part thereof constituting a separate delay period.  
(d) Permit display. Permits issued under this chapter shall be conspicuously displayed 
or otherwise available at all times at the indicated work site and shall be available for 
inspection by the city.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-09. - Permit applications.  
Application for a permit is made to the city. Right-of-way permit applications shall 
contain, and will be considered complete only upon compliance with the requirements 
of the following provisions:  
(a) Registration with the city pursuant to this chapter; 
(b) Submission of documentary evidence of applicant's authority to excavate, obstruct 
or operate in the right-of-way (e.g. state notice of franchise, signed local cable 
franchise agreement; certificate of public, service and convenience issued by North 
Carolina Public Utility Commission);  
(c) Submission of a permit application form, including all required attachments, and 
scaled drawings showing the location and area of the proposed project and the 
location of all known existing and proposed facilities.  
(d) Payment of money due the city for: 
(1) Permit fees, estimated restoration costs and other management costs; 
(2) Prior obstructions or excavations; 
(3) Any undisputed loss, damage, or expense suffered by the city because of 
applicant's prior excavations or obstructions of any public right-of-way or any 
Emergency actions taken by the city;  
(4) Franchise fees or other charges, if applicable. 
(e) Payment of any disputed amounts due the city by posting security or depositing in 
an escrow account an amount equal to one hundred (100) percent of the amount 
owed.  



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 12 of 28 

 

(f) Posting an additional or larger construction performance bond for additional 
facilities when applicant requests an excavation permit to install additional facilities 
and the city deems the existing construction performance bond inadequate under 
applicable standards.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-10. - Issuance of permit; conditions.  
(a) Permit issuance. If the applicant has satisfied the requirements of this chapter, the 
city shall issue a permit.  
(b) Conditions. The city may impose reasonable conditions upon the issuance of the 
permit and the performance of the applicant thereunder to protect the health, safety 
and welfare or when necessary to protect the right-of-way and its current use.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-11. - Permit fees.  
(a) Excavation permit fee. The following shall constitute its following excavation 
permit fees that are deemed to be in an amount sufficient to recover the following 
costs:  
(1) The city's administrative and management costs shall be calculated as follows: 
[(Labor + Indirect Costs)×Time + Other Costs]/Units = Cost per Unit Hypothetical 
Example  
a. [($30,000 + $13,500) × 25% + $2500]/300 = Recovery cost per permit 
b. [$33,500 + $8375 + $2500]/300 = Recovery cost per permit 
c. $44,375/300 = $147.91 recovery cost per permit issued 
d. Assumptions: 
1. Salary (e.g., public works employee) = $30,000.00 
2. Benefits = 45% of salary or $13,500.00 
3. Administrative - Management Overhead = 25% of salary ($33,500.00) or 
$8,375.00 
4. Other costs (e.g., permit forms) = $2,500.00 
5. Time devoted to right-of-way management = 25% 
6. Units = 300 ROW permits (estimated) issued during the year. 
(2) Plus all applicable degradation costs as set forth in section 16A-12.  
(b) Construction permit fee. Prior to issuance of a construction permit, the permittee 
shall pay the greater of the permit fee specified herein or one (1) percent of the 
estimated cost1 of constructing the facilities, as certified by the applicant's engineer 
and approved by the city.  
(c) Annual ROW cost recovery fees2 for underground facilities. Unless otherwise 
agreed in a license or encroachment agreement, each licensee or permittee shall pay 
an annual fee3 equal to: (1) fifty cents ($0.50)/linear foot for facilities up to six inches 
(6") or less in diameter in residential areas; (2) one dollar ($1.00)/linear foot for 
facilities up to six inches (6") or less in diameter in commercial areas; (3) one dollar 
($1.00)/linear foot for facilities six inches (6") to twelve inches (12") in diameter in 
residential areas; and (4) two dollars ($2.00)/linear foot for facilities six inches (6") to 
twelve inches (12") in diameter in commercial areas as reimbursement for the city's 
costs in connection with reviewing, inspecting and supervising the use and occupancy 
of the public ways in behalf of the public and existing or future users. The ROW use 
fee for underground encroachments exceeding twelve inches (12") in diameter shall 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 13 of 28 

 

be negotiated separately and set by the city council. Said fee shall be paid on an 
annual basis, due January 30th, for each ensuing calendar year. A prorated payment 
shall be made upon execution of any license or agreement, for the period from the 
effective date of the license or agreement to the end of the year. If a license or 
agreement is terminated during the fiscal year, the city shall refund payments, without 
interest, on a prorated monthly basis. Should a registrant fail to make the payments 
required herein, the city, at its option, by written notice may declare the license or 
agreement canceled and terminated and all rights acquired hereunder by the registrant 
shall thereupon terminate, except the registrant shall be responsible for removing the 
facilities installed pursuant to all ROW use agreements terminated by the city.  
(d) Annual ROW cost recovery fees for aerial facilities. Unless otherwise agreed in a 
license or encroachment agreement, each licensee or permittee shall pay an annual fee 
equal to (1) twenty-five cents ($0.25)/linear foot for facilities carried by a single 
strand or messenger cable in residential areas, and (2) two dollars ($2.00)/linear foot 
for facilities carried by a single strand or messenger cable in commercial areas, as 
reimbursement for the city's costs in connection with reviewing, inspecting and 
supervising the use and occupancy of the public ways in behalf of the public and 
existing or future users. Said fee shall be paid on an annual basis for the ensuing year, 
due January 30th. A prorated payment shall be made upon execution of any license or 
agreement, for the period from the effective date of the license or agreement to the 
end of the year. If a license or agreement is terminated during the year, the city shall 
refund payments, without interest, on a prorated basis. Should a registrant fail to 
make the payments required herein, the city, at its option, by written notice may 
declare the license or agreement canceled and terminated and all rights acquired 
hereunder by the registrant shall thereupon terminate, except the registrant shall be 
responsible for removing the facilities installed pursuant to all row use agreements 
terminated by the city.  
(e) Annual ROW cost recovery fees for surface and underground enclosures. Unless 
otherwise agreed in a license or encroachment agreement, each licensee or permittee 
shall pay an annual fee to the city equal to (1) five dollars ($5.00)/square foot for 
enclosures placed in residential areas, and (2) twenty dollars ($20.00)/square foot for 
enclosures placed in commercial areas as reimbursement for the city's costs 
associated with reviewing, inspecting and supervising the use and occupancy of the 
public ways in behalf of the public and existing or future users. Said fee shall to be 
paid on an annual basis, due January 30th, for each ensuing calendar year. A prorated 
payment shall be made upon execution of any license or agreement, for the period 
from the effective date of the license or agreement to the end of the year. If a license 
or agreement is terminated during the fiscal year, the city shall refund payments, 
without interest, on a prorated basis. Should a registrant fail to make the payments 
required herein, the city, at its option, by written notice may declare the license or 
agreement canceled and terminated and all rights acquired hereunder by the registrant 
shall thereupon terminate, except the registrant shall be responsible for removing the 
facilities installed pursuant to all ROW use agreements terminated by the city.  
(f) Obstruction permit fee. The following shall constitute the obstruction permit fee 
are deemed to be in an amount sufficient to recover the city's administrative and 
management costs as set forth in section 16A-11.  



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 14 of 28 

 

(g) (b) Payment of permit fees. No excavation permit or obstruction permit shall 
be issued without payment of excavation or obstruction permit fees. The city may 
allow applicant to pay such fees to the city within thirty (30) calendar days of billing.  
(h) (c)  Nonrefundable. Permit fees that were paid for a permit that was issued but not 
used or that the city has revoked for a breach as stated in section 16A-21 are not 
refundable.  
(i) Application to encroachment agreements. Unless otherwise agreed to in an 
encroachment agreement, management costs may be charged separately from and in 
addition to the fees imposed on a right-of-way user in the encroachment agreement.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
;sz=9.5q;Notes:  
;sz=9.5q;1  Construction cost, capital equipment cost, aerial/underground facilities 
and buildings. 
;sz=9.5q;2  The "ROW cost recovery fee" paid to the city by the registrant shall be net 
of any gross receipt telecommunication tax or utility tax paid by the recipient to the 
State of North Carolina attributed to the provision of services within the city. 
Evidence of such payment must be presented to the city together with remittance of 
the encroachment fee payment by the registrant.  
;sz=9.5q;3  CPI adjustment. Effective commencing on the fifth (5th) anniversary of 
the effective date of this chapter and continuing on each fifth (5th) anniversary 
thereafter during the term, the annual ROW use fee with respect to the ensuing five 
(5) year period shall be adjusted by a percentage amount equal to the percentage 
change in the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price 
Index which occurred during the previous five (5) year period for the Henderson 
Consolidated Micropolitan Statistical Area (CBSA #25780). 
 
“(a)  Excavation permit fee.  There shall be a permit fee charged by the City of 
Henderson in the sum of $150.00 for administration of the permit.  In addition 
where any street or sidewalk is cut (except where the same is made in 
conjunction with a water or sewer tap) the following fee shall be charged as an 
excavation fee: 
 
Concrete base more than four inches thick……………………………………     
$600.00 
Concrete base four inches thick or less……………………………………….        
500.00 
Asphalt street with no concrete base………………………………………….        
250.00 
Dirt street……………………………………………………………………...        
150.00 
Paved sidewalk (except Garnett Street between Spring and Church Streets)…       
150.00 
Garnett Street sidewalk between Spring and Church Streets………………….       
250.00 
Curb and gutter cut……………………………………………………………        
250.00 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 15 of 28 

 

Dirt sidewalk………………………………………………………………….          
50.00 
(Code 1967, § 16-24; 6-25-73; 6-23-80, § 4; 6-29-89, § 1; Ord. of 11-26-01, § 1) 
 
Sec. 16A-12. - Right-of-way patching and restoration.  
(a) Timing. The work to be done under the excavation permit, and the patching and 
restoration of the right-of-way as required herein, must be completed within the dates 
specified in the permit, increased by as many days as determined by the director 
because the work could not be done due to circumstances beyond the control of the 
permittee or when work was prohibited by the city.  
(b) Patch and restoration. permittee shall patch its own work. The city may choose 
either to have the permittee restore the right-of-way or to have the city restore the 
right-of-way itself.  
(1) City restoration. If the city restores the right-of-way, permittee shall pay the costs 
thereof within thirty (30) calendar days of billing. If, following such restoration, the 
pavement settles due to permittee's improper backfilling or other work, the permittee 
shall pay to the city, within thirty (30) calendar days of billing, all costs associated 
with correcting the defective work.  
(2) Permittee restoration. If the permittee restores the right-of-way itself, it shall at 
the time of application for an excavation permit post a construction performance 
bond.  
(3) Degradation fee in lieu of restoration. In lieu of right-of-way restoration, a right-
of-way user may elect to pay a degradation fee(s). The degradation fee(s) is based on 
a twenty (20) year street design standard and shall be calculated by applying the 
information in the below tables in the following formula.  
(4) Formula (Cost per square yard for street, overlays plus sealcoats) × depreciation 
rate × area of influence4  
;sz=9.5q;4 Area of influence is equal to area of the cut plus three (3.0) feet on each 
side as expressed in square yards.  
 
Overlays 
Age Rate Percent (%) 
1 90 
2 80 
3 70 
4 60 
5 50  
6 40  
7 30  
8 20 
9 10 
10 0 

 
 
 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 16 of 28 

 

Hypothetical example: 
Cost Per Square Yard5  
Type Cost 

Asphalt street 
reconstruction $45.00 
Overlays 5.00 
Seal coats 1.10 

 
 
;sz=9.5q;5 Cost values are based on service and material purchases by the city during 
the last two fiscal years.  
 
 
Depreciation Rate6  
Age Rate Percent (%) 
0 100 
1 99 
2 98 
3 97 
4 96 
5 95 
6 90 
7 84 
8 79 
9 74 
10 68 
11 63 
12 58  
13 52  
14 47  
15 42  
16 36  
17 31  
18 26 
19 20 
20 15 

 
;sz=9.5q;6 Depreciation rates are based on twenty (20) year street design standard. 
Depreciation for the first five (5) years is one (1) percent per year, followed by 
straight-line depreciation less fifteen (15) percent for the remaining street design 
standard (fifteen (15) years). Depreciation can occur at one (1) percent per year after 
this time for up to fifteen (15) years or street reconstruction or whichever comes first. 
This reflects the understanding that streets retain some value beyond their design 
standard or expected useful life.  



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 17 of 28 

 

Hypothetical example (see calculation table below) assumptions:  
1. Street is sixteen (16) years old. 
2. Overlay is five (5) years old. 
3. Sealcoat is one (1) year old. 
4. Area of cut is three feet by three feet (3 ft.×3 ft.)or nine square feet (9 sq. ft.). 
5. Area of influence is nine feet by nine feet (9 ft.×9 ft.) or eighty-one (81) square 
feet (81 sq. ft.) or nine square yards (9 sq. yds.).  
 
 Cost/Square yard 

Depreciation Rate 
Percent 

Area of 
Influen
ce 

Degrad
ation 
Cost 

Street $45.00 36  9.0 $ 
145.80 

Overla
y 

5.00 50  9.0 22.50 

Sealco
at 

1.10 80 9.0 7.92 

Total cost 

 
(c) Standards. The permittee shall perform excavation, backfilling, patching and 
restoration according to the standards and with the materials specified by the city.  
(d) Duty to correct defects. The permittee shall correct all defects in patching, or 
restoration performed by permittee or its agents. The permittee upon notification from 
the city, shall correct all restoration work to the extent required by the city, using the 
method required by the city. Said work shall be completed within five (5) calendar 
days of the receipt of the notice from the city, excluding calendar days where the 
director of public utilities determines that work cannot be done because work is 
prohibited as unseasonal or unreasonable under section 16A-16.  
(e) Failure to restore. If the permittee fails to restore the right-of-way in the manner 
and to the condition required by the city, or fails to satisfactorily and timely complete 
all restoration required by the city, the city at its option may do such work. In that 
event the permittee shall pay to the city, within thirty (30) calendar days of billing, 
the city's cost of restoring the right-of-way (plus 15% administrative and 
managerial fee). If permittee fails to pay as required, the city may exercise its rights 
under the construction performance bond.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-13. - Joint applications.  



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 18 of 28 

 

(a) Joint application. Registrants may jointly apply for permits to excavate or 
obstruct the right-of-way at the same place and time.  
(b) Shared fees. Registrants who apply for permits for the same obstruction or 
excavation, which the city does not perform, may share in the payment of the 
obstruction or excavation permit fee. To obtain a joint permit, registrants must agree 
among themselves as to the portion each will pay and indicate the same on their 
applications, but the same shall in no way restrict their joint and several liability to 
the city for any costs, expenses or liabilities for the failure of either registrant to fully 
comply with the provisions of this chapter.  
(c) Joint projects with city. Registrants who join in a scheduled obstruction or 
excavation performed by the city, whether or not it is a joint application by two (2) or 
more registrants or a single application, are not required to pay the excavation relative 
to those portions of the work performed solely by the city or obstruction and 
degradation portions of the permit fee, but a permit is still be required.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-14. - Supplementary applications.  
(a) Limitation on area. A right-of-way permit is valid only for the area of the right-
of-way specified in the permit. No permittee may do any work outside the area 
specified in the permit, except as provided herein. Any permittee which determines 
that an area greater than that specified in the permit must be obstructed or excavated 
must before working in that greater area and shall:  
(1) Make application for a permit extension and pay any additional fees required 
thereby; and 
(2) Be granted a new permit or permit extension. 
(3) Provided that where obstruction of a greater area is required by an unforeseen 
emergency that involves an imminent threat to the health and safety of others, the 
additional area can be temporarily obstructed provided an application is immediately 
made for the permit extension.  
(b) Limitation on dates. A right-of-way permit is valid only for the dates specified in 
the permit. No permittee may begin its work before the permit start date or, except as 
provided herein, continue working after the end date. if a permittee does not finish the 
work by the permit end date, it must apply for a new permit for the additional time it 
needs, and receive the new permit or an extension of the old permit before working 
after the end date of the previous permit. This supplementary application must be 
submitted before the permit end date.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-15. - Other obligations.  
(a) Compliance with other laws. Obtaining a right-of-way permit does not relieve 
permittee of its duty to obtain all other necessary permits, licenses, and authority and 
to pay all fees required by the city or other applicable rule, law or regulation. A 
permittee shall comply with all requirements of local, state and federal laws and 
regulations, including NCDOT ROW Policies and chapter 87 of the North Carolina 
General Statutes (Underground Damage Prevention Act); the National Electric Safety 
Code (NESC), the National Electric Code (NEC) and Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (OSHA) regulations. A permittee shall perform all work in 
conformance with all applicable codes and established rules and regulations, and is 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 19 of 28 

 

responsible for all work performed in the right-of-way pursuant to its permit, 
regardless of who does the work. The permittee shall place all such barriers and use 
all traffic controls and necessary personnel required to assure the safety of all persons 
using or coming in contact with the right-of-way and as needed to protect the rights of 
others having utilities in the area.  
(b) Prohibited work. Except in an emergency, and with the approval of the city, no 
right-of-way obstruction or excavation may be performed when seasonally prohibited, 
or when conditions are unreasonable for such work, as determined by the city.  
(c) Interference with right-of-way. A permittee shall not so obstruct a right-of-way 
that the natural free and clear passage of water through the gutters or other waterways 
shall not be interfered. Private vehicles of those doing work in the right-of-way may 
not be parked within or next to a permit area, unless parked in conformance with city 
parking regulations. The loading or unloading of trucks must be done solely within 
the defined permit area unless specifically authorized by the permit.  
(d) Traffic control devices. The permittee shall place all such barriers and utilize all 
traffic controls and necessary personnel required to ensure the safety of persons using 
or coming in contact with the right-of-way and to protect the rights of others having 
utilities or other uses in the area.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-16. - Denial of permit.  
The city may deny a permit for failure to meet the requirements and conditions of this 
chapter or if the city determines that the denial is necessary to protect the health, 
safety, and welfare or when necessary to protect the right-of-way in its current use or 
due to a congested right-of-way, or where the city has experienced prior problems 
with the applicant's cooperation or compliance with provisions of this chapter.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-17. - Installation requirements.  
(a) Excavation. The excavation, backfilling, patching and restoration, and all other 
work performed in the right-of-way shall be done in conformance with NCDOT 
ROW policies and other applicable local requirements.  
(b) Stealth installation. Any registrant placing facilities on or within the right-of-way 
shall make certain they are installed in such a way as to be not immediately 
noticeable. The registrant is required to place facilites in such a manner as to 
minimize any adverse aesthetic or visual impact on the land, property, buildings, and 
other facilities adjacent to, surrounding, and in generally the same area as the 
intended location of pedestals, equipment cabinets, and uninterruptible power 
supplies, etcetera. The registrant shall use the least visually and physically intrusive 
facilities and/or use camouflage to disguise and render the facilities visually 
unobtrusive. All such facilities shall not block or obscure the visual observation of 
vehicular traffic by the drivers of vehicles entering, exiting or traversing streets, 
sidewalks and roadways. All such installations shall be subject to the director of 
public utilities prior approval.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-18. - Inspection.  
(a) Notice of completion. When the work under any permit is completed, the 
permittee shall file a completion certificate with the director.  



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 20 of 28 

 

(b) Site inspection. Permittee shall make the work-site available to the city (and to 
other utilities using that area of the right-of-way) for inspection upon request and at 
all reasonable times during the execution of and upon completion of the work.  
(c) Authority of director.  
(1) At the time of any inspection, the director may order the immediate cessation of 
any work on the basis that it poses a serious threat to the life, health, safety or well 
being of the public.  
(2) The director may issue any appropriate order to the permittee to remedy, correct, 
and or complete any work that does not conform to the terms of the permit or other 
applicable standards, conditions or codes. If said order is not promptly fulfilled under 
the existing circumstances, as found by the director, the permit shall be revoked.  
(3) The director of public utilities may either issue an order to revoke the permit of a 
permittee for any work that does not conform to the terms of the permit or other 
applicable standards, conditions, or codes (e.g., NESC, NEC and OSHA) or issue an 
order directing the permittee to remedy, correct and finish any work.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-19. - Work performed without a permit.  
(a) Emergency situations. Each registrant shall immediately notify the director (and 
the appropriate, city manager, fire or police chief) of any event regarding its facilities 
that it considers an emergency. The registrant may proceed to take whatever actions 
are necessary to immediately respond to the emergency. Within two (2) business days 
after the occurrence of the emergency, the registrant shall apply for the necessary 
permits, pay associated fee, and fulfill all requirements necessary to reestablish its 
compliance with this chapter for any actions that made it noncompliant during the 
emergency.  
If the city becomes aware of an emergency regarding a registrant's facilities, the city 
will attempt to contact the local representative of each registrant affected, or 
potentially affected, by the emergency. In any event, the city may take whatever 
action it deems necessary to respond to the emergency, the cost of which shall be 
borne by the registrant whose facilities occasioned the emergency.  
(b) Nonemergency situations. Except in an emergency, any person who, without first 
having obtained the necessary permit, obstructs or excavates a right-of-way, must 
subsequently obtain a permit, and as a penalty pay double a civil penalty, pay triple 
the normal fee for said permit, pay all the other fees required by the City Code, 
deposit with the city the fees necessary to correct any damage to the right-of-way as 
determined by the city, and immediately comply with all of the requirements of this 
chapter.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-20. - Supplementary notification.  
If the obstruction or excavation of the right-of-way begins later or ends sooner than 
the date stated on the permit, permittee shall notify the director of the accurate 
information as soon as this information is known.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-21. - Revocation of permits.  
(a) Substantial breach. The city reserves its right, as provided herein, to revoke any 
right-of-way permit, without a fee refund, if there is a substantial breach of the terms 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 21 of 28 

 

and conditions of any statute, ordinance, rule or regulation, or any material condition 
of the permit. A substantial breach by permittee shall include, but shall not be limited 
to, the following:  
(1) The violation of any material provision of the right-of-way permit; 
(2) An evasion or attempt to evade any material provision of the right-of-way permit, 
or the perpetration or attempt to perpetrate any fraud or deceit upon the city or its 
citizens;  
(3) Any material misrepresentation of fact in the application for a right-of-way 
permit; 
(4) The failure to complete the work in a timely manner; unless a permit extension is 
obtained or unless the failure to complete work is due to reasons beyond the 
permittee's control; or  
(5) The failure to correct, in a timely manner, work that does not conform to a 
condition indicated on an order issued pursuant to section 16A-18.  
(6) The failure to comply with any lawful order of the city issued pursuant to this 
chapter. 
The order to revoke a permit shall state the violation and that failure to correct the 
violation will be cause for revocation of the permit. Within ten (10) calendar days 
after issuance of the order, the permittee shall present proof to the director that the 
violation has been corrected. If such proof has not been presented within the required 
time, or if the proof is determined to be unacceptable by the director, the director may 
revoke the permit and implement penalties in accordance with section 16A-30.  
(b) Written notice of breach. If the city determines that the permittee has committed a 
substantial breach of a term or condition of any statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or 
any condition of the permit the city shall make a written demand upon the permittee 
to remedy such violation. The demand shall state that continued violations may be 
cause for revocation of the permit. A substantial breach, as stated above, will allow 
the city, at his or her discretion, to place additional or revised conditions on the 
permit to mitigate and remedy the breach.  
(c) Response to notice of breach. Within twenty-four (24) hours of receiving 
notification of the breach, permittee shall provide the city with a plan, acceptable to 
the city, to cure the breach. permittee's failure to so contact the city, or permittee's 
failure to timely submit an acceptable plan, or permittee's failure to reasonably 
implement the approved plan, shall be cause for immediate revocation of the permit. 
Further, permittee's failure to so contact the city, or permittee's failure to submit an 
acceptable plan, or permittee's failure to reasonably implement the approved plan, 
shall automatically place the permittee on probation for one (1) full year.  
(d) Cause for probation. From time to time, the city may establish a list of conditions 
of the permit, which if breached will automatically place the permittee on probation 
for one (1) full year, such as, but not limited to, working out of the allotted time 
period or working on right-of-way grossly outside of the permit authorization.  
(e) Automatic revocation. If a permittee, while on probation, commits a breach as 
outlined above, permittee's permit will automatically be revoked and permittee will 
not be allowed further permits for one full year, except for emergency repairs.  
(f) Revocation. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the city shall have the 
right to immediately revoke any permit without further notice, if the city finds that 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 22 of 28 

 

such action is necessary to protect people or property from serious and immediate 
danger.  
(g) Reimbursement of city costs. If a permit is revoked, the permittee shall promptly 
reimburse the city for the city's expenses, including restoration costs and the costs of 
collection of all funds owed and reasonable attorneys' fees incurred in connection 
with such revocation and/or collection.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-22. - Mapping data.  
(a) Mapping information required. Each registrant and permittee shall provide 
mapping information required by the city, such as drawings in paper and electronic 
(e.g., Autocad files) form showing the precise location of the encroachment, and in 
the case of encroachments for transmission devices the drawing shall show the 
location of other adjacent utilities in the public right-of-way at the time of permit 
application. At the City’s request, maps of all prior encroachments by the 
encroacher shall be provided to the City if the same are reasonably available. 
(b) Failure to comply. It shall be unlawful for any person to fail, refuse, or neglect to 
file any map or set of maps at the time, and in all respects as required by this section. 
Such failure shall, after thirty days notice from the City, also subject said 
violator with the civil penalties set forth in Section 16A-30. 
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-23. - Location and relocation of facilities.  
(a) Placement, location, and relocation of facilities must comply with this chapter and 
the permits issued hereunder together and with all federal, state and local laws, and 
with NCDOT ROW Policies Rules.  
(b) Corridors. The city may assign specific areas within the right-of-way, or any 
particular segment thereof as may be necessary, for each type of facility that is or, 
pursuant to current technology, the city expects will someday be located within the 
right-of-way. All excavation, obstruction, or other permits issued by the city 
involving the installation or replacement of facilities shall designate the proper 
corridor for the facilities at issue.  
Any registrant who has facilities in the right-of-way in a position at variance with the 
corridors established by the city shall, no later than at the time of the next 
reconstruction or excavation of the area where the facilities are located, move the 
facilities at no cost to the city to the assigned position within the right-of-way, unless 
this requirement is waived by the city for good cause shown upon consideration of 
such factors as the remaining economic life of the facilities, public safety, customer 
service needs and hardship to the registrant.  
(c) Nuisance. One year after the passage of this chapter, any public facilities a right-
of-way that have not been registered shall be declared to be a nuisance. The city may 
exercise any remedies or rights it has at law or in equity, including, but not limited to, 
abating the nuisance or taking possession of the facilities and restoring the right-of-
way to a useable condition.  
(d) Limitation of space. To protect health, safety, and welfare or when necessary to 
protect the right-of-way and its current use, the city shall have the power to prohibit 
or limit the placement of new or additional facilities within the right-of-way. In 
making such decisions, the city shall strive to the extent possible to accommodate all 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 23 of 28 

 

existing and potential users of the right-of-way, but shall be guided primarily by 
considerations of the public interest, the public's needs for the particular utility 
service, the condition of the right-of-way, the time of year with respect to essential 
utilities, the protection of existing facilities in the right-of-way, and future city plans 
for public improvements and development projects which have been determined to be 
in the public interest unless this requirement is waived by the city for good cause 
shown, upon consideration of such factors as public safety, customer service need and 
hardship to the registrant.  
(e) Relocation. The registrant shall be required to relocate its facilities at no cost to 
the city to accommodate improvements to or within the right-of-way, such as street 
widening projects, water/sewer line projects and the like.  
(f) Right-of-way use required. Whenever a public right-of-way exists to 
accommodate the registrant's facilities, the registrant shall locate its facilities, other 
than customer drops or gravity sewer lines, in the city's public right-of-way.  
(g) Restoration. Permittee shall within thirty (30) calendar days restore and replace 
with like materials any landscaped areas, pavement, pedestrian lighting, sidewalks, 
curbs, gutters or other facilities damaged or disturbed by permittee within the public 
right-of-way or by its contractors with like material and restored to their former 
condition at permittee's expense, and shall thereafter, from time to time, but no longer 
than one (1) year from the completion of the job, readjust, reseed, fill and finish the 
same as may be necessary due to settling of the earth, failure of vegetation to 
germinate or other matters associated with permittee's disruption of the public right-
of-way.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-24. - Pre-excavation facilities location.  
In addition to complying with the requirements of Chapter 87 of the North Carolina 
General Statutes ("Underground Damage Prevention Act") before the start date of any 
right-of-way excavation, each registrant who has facilities or equipment in the area to 
be excavated shall mark the horizontal and vertical placement of all said facilities. 
Any registrant whose facilities are less than twenty (20) inches below a concrete or 
asphalt surface shall notify, and work closely with, the excavation contractor to 
establish the exact location of its facilities and determine the best procedure for 
excavation.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-25. - Damage to other facilities.  
When the city performs work in the right-of-way and finds it necessary to maintain, 
support, or move a registrant's facilities to protect it, the city shall notify the local 
representative as early as is reasonably possible. The costs associated therewith will 
be billed to that registrant and must be paid within thirty (30) calendar days from the 
date of billing. Each registrant shall be responsible for the cost of repairing any 
facilities in the right-of-way that it, or its facilities damage. Each registrant shall be 
responsible for the cost of repairing any damage to the facilities of another registrant 
caused during the city's response to an emergency occasioned by that registrant's 
facilities.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-26. - Vacating rights-of-way.  



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 24 of 28 

 

If the city vacates a right-of-way that contains the facilities of a registrant, the 
registrant's rights in the vacated right-of-way are governed by North Carolina law.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-27. - Right-of-way use fees, reimbursements and review.  
(a) Purpose. It is the purpose of this chapter to provide for the payment and recovery 
of all direct and indirect costs and expenses of the city related to the enforcement and 
administration herein.  
(b) Reserved fees for work in public right-of-way. The city council reserves its right 
to establish on a periodic basis, fair, equitable, and reasonable 
reimbursement/regulatory fees to be paid for the rights granted to an entity seeking 
use of the public right-of-way. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the city and a 
permittee from agreeing to the compensation to be paid for the granted rights.  
(c) Regulatory fees for work on city property. If the right is granted, by lease, license, 
franchise or other manner, to use and occupy city property for the installation of cable 
television, gas, power, telephone, telecommunications, sanitary and storm sewer, and 
water distribution facilities, the reimbursement/regulatory fees to be paid shall be 
determined by the city.  
(d) Regulatory fees and reimbursements not a tax. The regulatory fees and costs 
provided for in this chapter, and any reimbursements charged and paid for work in or 
use of the public right-of-ways provided by this chapter, are separate from, and 
additional to, any and all federal, state, local city and county taxes or franchise fees 
or taxes as may be levied, imposed or due from a telecommunications carrier or 
provider or other user of the public rights of way, their respective customers or 
subscribers, or on account of the lease, sale, delivery or services.  
(e) Late payment penalty. In the event the registrant fails to make any payment on or 
before the date it is due, the registrant shall pay interest at a rate of one (1) percent per 
month on any such under-payment and/or late payment.  
(f) Additional remedies. The remedy provisions set forth in this chapter are not 
exclusive, and do not preclude the city or the city manager, director, or his or her 
designee from pursuing any other or additional remedy in the event that payments 
become overdue.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-28 - Liability and insurance.  
(a) Certificate of insurance. Prior to commencement of construction and thereafter 
continuously throughout the duration of the registrant's use of the right-of-way, the 
registrant shall furnish to the city certificates of insurance, approved by the city's 
finance director, for all types of insurance required under this chapter. Failure to 
furnish the certificates of insurance in a timely manner shall constitute a violation of 
this chapter.  
(b) Required provisions. The permittee shall furnish the city a certificate as the 
evidence of insurance coverage by these provisions. The certificate shall include a 
provision providing for a thirty (30) day notification to the city in the event of 
cancellation, exhaustion of policy aggregates, non-renewal or reduction of coverage 
of policy limits. Any language in the certificate that relieves the insurance company 
and its agents from liability for failure to provide such notice shall be deleted by the 
insurance company. The endorsements required by the subsection (d) of this section 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 25 of 28 

 

shall be attached to the certificate. The city reserves the right to require a complete, 
certified copy of the required insurance policy, at any time. The permittee shall 
provide certificates annually after renewal of coverage.  
(c) Liability waiver not authorized. Neither the provisions of this section or any 
damages recovered by the city under this section shall be construed to limit the 
liability of the permittee under any license or encroachment agreement issued under 
this chapter.  
(d) Endorsement. All insurance policies maintained pursuant to this chapter shall 
contain the following, or a comparable, endorsement: "The City of Henderson is 
recognized as an insured for the purpose of receiving thirty (30) calendar days notice 
of non-renewal, reduction of coverage or policy limits, exhaustion of policy limits or 
cancellation for any reason, and the company shall agree to provide such notice."  
(e) Hold harmless. All contractual liability insurance policies maintained pursuant to 
this chapter shall include provision of the following hold harmless clause: "The 
insured agrees to indemnify, save harmless and defend the city, its officials, agents, 
servants and employees, and each of them from and against and hold each of them 
harmless from any and all lawsuits, claims (including without limitation workers' 
compensation claims against the city or others), demands, liabilities, losses and 
judgments for personal injury, death, property damage, or the infringement of rights, 
arising out of or in any way related to the construction, operation, maintenance or 
ownership of its facilities, or otherwise from the exercise or performance of any 
actions taken, or alleged to have been taken under this chapter the City Code of the 
City of Henderson. This indemnity shall apply in any and all cases, save and except 
only those cases in which the injury, death, damage, loss, claim or demand is caused 
by, or results from, the direct negligence or intentional conduct of the city, its agents, 
public officials or employees."  
(f) Authorized insurers. All insurance policies required under provisions of this 
chapter shall be issued by a company or companies authorized to conduct business in 
the State of North Carolina, and approved by the state Department of Insurance.  
(g) Additional named insured. At all times during any period of work hereunder by a 
permittee, and for a period of four (4) years thereafter, the permittee shall cause each 
of its insurers to name the city as an additional named insured for all insurance 
policies, except worker's compensation, written under the provision of this chapter.  
(h) Inflation adjustment required. To offset the effects of inflation and to reflect 
changing liability limits, all of the coverage, limits and amounts of the insurance 
provided for in this section are subject to reasonable increases at the end of every 
three (3) year period, applicable to the next three (3) year period, in an amount 
determined by the city finance director.  
(i) General liability insurance. Until otherwise increased by the city, Until 
otherwise determined by the City Manager the permittee shall maintain general 
liability insurance insuring the permittee in the minimum of:  
(1) Two million dollars ($2,000,000.00) for property damage per occurrence to any 
one person; 
(2) Two million dollars ($2,000,000.00) for property damage per accident or 
occurrence; 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 26 of 28 

 

(3) Five million dollars ($5,000,000.00) for personal bodily injury or death to any one 
person; and 
(4) Ten million dollars ($10,000,000.00) bodily injury or death aggregate per single 
accident or occurrence. 
(j) Coverage. Such general liability insurance must include coverage for all of the 
following: comprehensive form, premises-operations, explosion and collapse hazard, 
underground hazard, products/completed operations hazard, contractual insurance, 
broad form property damage and personal injury.  
(k) Automobile liability insurance. The permittee shall continuously maintain motor 
vehicle liability insurance for all owned, or leased, or rented vehicles in the minimum 
amount of two million dollars ($2,000,000.00) combined single limit per accident for 
bodily injury and property damage.  
(l) Umbrella/excess liability. At the option of the permittee, the limits of the primary 
general liability and motor vehicle liability coverage may be less than stipulated in 
this section, provided an excess policy is continuously in effect covering the 
additional limits needed, and such excess coverage is at least as broad as the primary 
policy.  
(m) Worker compensation and employer's liability insurance. The permittee shall 
maintain worker's compensation and employer's liability, valid in the State of North 
Carolina, in the minimum amount of:  
(1) Statutory limit for worker's compensation. 
(2) Employee liability with limits of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000.00) for 
each accident; five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000.00) bodily injury or disease 
policy limit.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-29. - Indemnification and liability.  
(a) Indemnification required. The permittee shall, as its sole cost and expense, fully 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the city, its officials, agents, servants and 
employees from and against any and all lawsuits, claims, causes of action, liability 
and judgments for injury or damages (including but not limited to expenses for 
reasonable attorneys fees and for all disbursements and liabilities not expressly 
assumed by the city) in connection with, arising from or damaging:  
(1) To persons or property, in any way arising out of or through the acts or omissions 
of the permittee, its servants, agents or employees, to which the permittee's 
negligence shall in any way contribute, unless caused solely by negligence or other 
fault of the city, its agents, servants or employees, or any other person indemnified 
under this chapter, or  
(2) Arising out of the permittee's failure to comply with the provisions of any federal, 
state or local statute, ordinance or regulation applicable to the permittee in its 
business under this chapter.  
(b) The foregoing indemnity is preconditioned on the following. The city shall give 
the permittee prompt notice of any claim or the commencement of any action, suit or 
other proceeding covered by the provisions of this section. Nothing in this section 
shall be deemed to prevent the city from cooperating with the permittee and 
participating in the defense of any litigation by its own counsel at its sole costs and 
expense. No recovery by the city of any sum by reason of any liquidated damages 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 27 of 28 

 

from a third party shall be subject to litigation by the permittee, except that any sum 
so received by the city shall be deducted from any recovery that the city might have 
against the permittee under the terms of this section.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-30. – Civil Penalty Provisions.  
For failure to comply with any provisions of this chapter, the city council may impose 
the following civil penalties (unless otherwise provided in this chapter):  
(1) First noncompliance: Seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00) per day; 
(2) Second noncompliance within two (2) consecutive calendar quarters: One 
thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500.00) per day; 
(3) Third and subsequent non compliances within four (4) consecutive calendar 
quarters: Three thousand dollars ($3,000.00) per day.  
(4) Each days vilolation or part thereof shall be deemed a separate failure, violation 
and offence. 
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-31. - Abandonment of underground facilities.  
(a) Discontinued operations. A registrant who chooses to discontinue all or a portion 
of its operations in the city must demonstrate to the city that the registrant's 
obligations for its facilities in the right-of-way under this chapter have been lawfully 
assigned to and assumed by another registrant or abandoned in accordance with this 
chapter.  
(b) Reports and maps.  
(1) Whenever any facility/facilities is abandoned in the public right-of-way, the 
person owning, using, controlling or having an interest therein, shall, within thirty 
(30) calendar days after such abandonment, file in the office of the director a 
statement in writing, giving in detail the location of the facility/facilities so 
abandoned. Each map, set of maps, or plans filed pursuant to the provisions of this 
chapter, including those maps or plans required by section 16A-22 shall show in 
detail the location of each such facility/facilities abandoned subsequent to the filing of 
the last preceding map, set of maps, or plans.  
(2) It shall be unlawful for any person to fail, refuse, or neglect to file any map or set 
of maps at the time, and in all respects as required by this section.  
(c) Removal. Any registrant who has abandoned facilities in the right-of-way 
(without a valid assuming registrant) shall remove those facilities from the right-of-
way and complete such removal within one hundred eighty (180) calendar days 
(unless the city agrees to have said facilities conveyed to the city in accordance with 
subsection (d), below).  
(d) Conveyance to city. the city council may elect to take title to abandoned facilities 
in the name of the city (or its assignee), provided the registrant submits to the city an 
instrument satisfactory to the city transferring ownership of such property and 
facilities.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-32. - Appeal.  
(a) A right-of-way user that:  
(1) Has been denied registration; 
(2) Has been denied a permit; 



CAF 12-95:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 28 of 28 

 

(3) Has had its permit revoked; or 
(4) Believes that the fees imposed are invalid, may have the denial, revocation, or fee 
imposition reviewed, upon written request, by the city manager. The city manager 
shall act on a timely written request within thirty-five (35) calendar days following 
receipt of such request. A decision by the city manager affirming the denial, 
revocation, or fee imposition will be in writing and shall be final. Upon the written 
request of the appealing party before a decision is rendered, the city manager's 
decision shall be supported by written findings that establish the basis for the 
decision, but such written findings are not otherwise required.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-33. - Encroachment agreement.  
Nothing in this chapter precludes the city from requiring an encroachment agreement 
with the applicant, in addition to requirements set forth herein.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-34. - Severability.  
If any portion of this chapter is for any reason held invalid or unenforceable by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 
independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or enforceability 
of the remaining portions thereof.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-35. - Anti-competitive practices.  
No registrant issued permits pursuant to the provisions of this chapter shall be 
deemed to expressly or impliedly authorize the permittee to use its facilities to 
provide any service in such manner as to unlawfully damage any business competitor 
or other third party or violate any statutes or regulations of the United States or the 
State of North Carolina. Nor shall any permittee, by act or omission, engage in any 
anti-competitive practice in violation of any statutes or regulations of the United 
States or the State of North Carolina. The provisions of this section shall be 
enforceable in courts of competent jurisdiction against a permittee by any party that 
alleges injury as a result of an alleged violation of this chapter.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
Sec. 16A-36. - No recourse against the city.  
Nothing herein imposes any affirmative duty on the city to grant or deny permits 
hereunder, or to investigate the work history or record or credentials of any applicant, 
registrant, or permittor, or to inspect any work hereunder, or to remedy any conditions 
or problems discovered, or to take any enforcement action hereunder.  
The registrant and no third party shall have any recourse whatsoever against the city 
or its officials, boards, commissions, agents or employees for any loss, cost, expense 
or damage arising out of any provision or requirements of this chapter or because of 
the legal enforcement or nonenforcement hereof, or any other acts or omissions, by 
the city or its officials, employees or agents.  
(Ord. of 3-26-07)  
 



CAF 12-119: 24 September 2012 Work Session 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

10 September 2012 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  12-119 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-82, Amendments to City Administrative Policy 
4.13, The Pay Plan and 10.01, Types of Separation. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen:   
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 6: Develop and Maintain a Qualified Municipal Workforce – To provide a supportive and 

competitive workforce climate that facilitates and maintains a strong workforce capability and 
capacity and adequate staffing levels. 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12—82, Amendments to City Administrative Policy 4.13, The Pay Plan and 

10.01 Types of Separation.  
 
Executive Summary:  
 
The City is committed to promoting an efficient and effective work environment for all employees. The 
current City administrative policies do not state any consequences for resignation tendered with notice of 
less than two-weeks, or no-notice.  This creates a difficult situation for supervisors and co-workers 
because an employee’s sudden departure does not allow an opportunity to transfer knowledge or adjust 
schedules.   
 
The proposed changes to The Pay Plan and Types of Separation policies will help standardize the process 
for employees separating from the City.  Employees, who wish to leave in good standing with the City 
and receive the eligible annual leave earned for their service years, must submit and work a two-week 
notice or otherwise forfeit the payout.  Supervisors will have time to plan training and work schedules in 
preparation of the employees’ separation.  At the discretion of the Supervisor, the two week notice may 
be reduced or waived. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 12—82 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item:        ______________ 
 
Council Meeting:   24 Sept 12 Work Session 
 



CAF 12-119: 24 September 2012 Work Session 
Page 2 of 3 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 12—82 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING 
AMENDMENTS TO PERSONNEL POLICY 4.13 

RELATIVE TO THE PAY PLAN & 
10.01 TYPES OF SEPARATION 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 

January 2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of these Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 6: 

Develop and Maintain a Qualified Municipal Workforce – To provide a supportive and 
competitive workforce climate that facilitates and maintains a strong workforce 
capability and capacity and adequate staffing levels; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council provides personnel policies that provide for the proper 

administration of Human Resources; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is appropriate to amend the policies from time to time; and 
 
WHEREAS, Administrative Policies No.13 The Pay Plan and 10.01 Types of Separation are 

amended to promote an effective and efficient productive work environment for all 
employees.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT 

IT DOES HEREBY APPROVE the amendments to Administrative Policy 4.13, The Pay 
Plan and Policy 10.01, Types of Separation being more fully articulated in  Attachment A 
to this Resolution.   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL that the afore 

referenced Administrative Policies shall be effective on the adoption date of this 
Resolution. 

  
The foregoing Resolution 12-82, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the *** day of **** 2010:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 41, pp. **. 



CAF 12-119: 24 September 2012 Work Session 
Page 3 of 3 

 

  
13  THE PAY PLAN - TERMINAL  SEPARATION PAY: 
 
An employee who is separated shall be paid for annual leave accumulated to the date of separation with the 
following exceptions   not to exceed the maximum allowed provided he/she has completed six (6) or 
more months of continuous service and provided he/she has submitted and worked a two-week notice.  
Department heads shall submit a written resignation and work a minimum four-week notice.  An 
employee who is involuntarily separated without fault or delinquency on his/her part shall be paid for 
annual leave accumulated to the date of separation not to exceed the allowable maximum for 
accumulation purposes.  Compensation for accumulated annual leave shall not be paid to an 
employee dismissed for cause or delinquency or who does not submit the required notice or does not 
surrender any and all City issued or provided equipment, and any office or City related materials 
and document. 

 
(a) Final pay will be made after all documented indebtedness to the City has been paid in full, (in 

accordance with N.C.G.S. §95-25.8) and all supplies formerly in the possession of said employee 
have been accounted for in proper condition. 
 

 (b)Terminal  Separation pay will include the maximum amount of leave that is allowable for 
accumulation purposes as defined in Section 9.05 of this manual.  

 
 
10.01  TYPES OF SEPARATION: 

 
All separations of employees from positions in the service of the City shall be designated in the employee’s 
records as one of the following types and shall be accomplished in the manner indicated:  resignation, left-job, 
dismissal, lay-off, retirement, disability and death. 

 
(a) Resignation. An employee may resign by submitting his or her resignation, including the effective 

date, in writing to his or her department head as far in advance as possible, but a minimum of two 
(2) weeks notice for the general population (unless otherwise agreed to by the department head) 
and four (4) weeks for department head is required to resign in good standing.  Failure to 
comply with this requirement may be cause for denying future employment with the City.  Other 
actions deemed to be an employee’s resignation are set forth elsewhere in this article.  Also, the 
employee forfeits the payout of accumulated annual leave as set forth in Section 4:13. 

 
(b) Left-job.  Either unauthorized absence or unapproved annual (or other) leave or unreported (or 

unverified) sick leave from his or her job for three (3) consecutive work days or willful failure to 
properly perform the duties  of his or her employment during three (3) consecutive work days 
shall be considered as an employee’s resignation, and thereby he or she shall be terminated from 
the payroll, provided that this shall not prevent disciplinary action, including dismissal, for any 
such actions over a lesser period of time. The employee forfeits the payout of accumulated 
annual leave as set forth in Section 4:13. 

 
(c) Dismissal is a disciplinary action taken by the City whereby the offending employee is relieved 

of all duties and responsibilities and is discharged from the employment of the City.  See 
Disciplinary Actions, Section 10.02 of this policy and Section 4:13 The Pay Plan- separation 
pay. 

 
 

Resolution 12-82 
Attachment A 



CAF 12-124:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

13 September 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 12-124 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-84, Supporting the Completion of the 
Widening of SR 1228 (Chavasse Avenue) from US 1 Business (Raleigh Road) to SR 
1143 (S. William Street). 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 KSO 5:    Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems. 

 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-84, Supporting the Completion of the Widening of SR 1228 

(Chavasse Avenue) from US 1 Business (Raleigh Road) to SR 1143 (S. William Street). 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
Resolutions seeking funding were approved by the City Council on 6 November 2006 and 
funding was approved in 2007 by the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) 
for the Chavasse Avenue widening project (from Raleigh Road to S. William Street),  including 
the installation of curb and gutter and a sidewalk.  It was required that right-of-ways be obtained 
by the City prior to the funds being approved.  
 
 The easements were obtained and after the appropriation of funds, the engineering design was 
completed by NCDOT.  Upon completion of the plans, the utility relocation was performed as 
well as the relocation of existing fences.  Shortly after this was done, the City received notice 
that planning had begun for the High Speed Rail project, of which Henderson was being 
considered for a Passenger Rail Stop.  Work was then suspended on the Chavasse Avenue 
project pending outcome of the closing of the Chavasse Avenue crossing or an 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 24 Sept 12 Work Session 



CAF 12-124:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 2 of 4 

 

underpass/overpass if the High Speed Rail project proceeds.  After many public hearings and 
review of the crossings in the Henderson area, it appears that ultimately the High Speed Rail 
project would require the Chavasse Avenue crossing to be closed, as an underpass/overpass in 
this area would not be feasible, and would require the disturbance of historical structures.  In 
light of these determinations, a decision needs to be made whether or not to complete the 
Chavasse Avenue widening project. In the event the High Speed Rail project proceeds Chavasse 
Avenue would become a “T” intersection at Young Avenue.  The new sidewalk would connect 
to Young Avenue and eventually tie in to the new pedestrian crossing to the east of Chavasse 
Avenue that would be built as a result of the High Speed Rail project.   
 
NCDOT has requested a Resolution of the City’s desire to complete the Chavasse Avenue 
Widening Project and funding is still available. 
 
 
Enclosure: 
 

1. Resolution 12-84 



CAF 12-124:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 3 of 4 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   12-84 
 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING COMPLETION OF THE WIDENING OF 
 SR 1228 (CHAVASSE AVENUE) FROM US 1 BUSINESS (RALEIGH 

ROAD) TO SR 1143(S. WILLIAM STREET) 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 
2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of these Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 5: To 

Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems. 
 

WHEREAS,  the City Council resolved on 6 November 2006 to request release of funding in the total 
amount of $700,000 to complete the widening of Chavasse Avenue;  and 

 
WHEREAS, the NCDOT prepared the design for the project and utility relocation was performed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the design prepared by the NCDOT includes the installation of curb and gutter, sidewalk on 

the north side and widening to a width of 36’-0 (back to back of curb); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council does understand that the Chavasse Avenue crossing would be closed as if 

the High Speed Rail project proceeds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the remaining portion of Chavasse Avenue would still be used by nearby businesses and 

homes, as well as connecting future sidewalks to a new pedestrian crossing which would be built 
as a result of the High Speed Rail project. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY APPROVE supporting the completion of the Chavasse Avenue widening project (SR 
1228) by the NCDOT as indicated by Attachment A to this Resolution, and is appreciative of the 
NCDOT in retaining these funds to complete said project. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-84, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council Member **, 
and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was ***** on this the *** 
day of **** 2012:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 41, pp. **, CAF 12-124 



CAF 12-124:  24 September 12 Work Session 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

Resolution 12-84 
Attachment A 



CAF 12-126: 24 September 2012 Work Session 
Page 1 of 12 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

17 September 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12—126 

Consideration of Approval of 1) Ordinance 12-71, FY 12-13 Budget Amendment 
#13, Amending Fund 73: Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund; and 2) 
Resolution 12-A-16, Authorizing an Amendment to the Capital Reserves Economic 
Development Fund in Regards to the North Carolina Rural Center and Golden Leaf 
Foundation Grants’ Applications for Water Line for Economic Development 
Prospect 12-2; and Authorizing an Inter-Local Agreement with Vance County for 
Eligibility for Said Mentioned Grants. 
 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 3:  To create new jobs and investment, expand the tax base and increase the per capita 

income. 
 
 
Recommendation:             
 
 Approval of  1) Ordinance 12-71, FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #13, Amending Fund 73: 

Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund; and 2) Resolution 12-A-16, Authorizing an 
Amendment to the Capital Reserves Economic Development Fund in Regards to the North 
Carolina Rural Center and Golden Leaf Foundation Grants’ Applications for Water Line for 
Economic Development Prospect 12-2; And Authorizing an Inter-Local-Agreement with 
Vance County for Eligibility for Said Mentioned Grants. 

 
 
Executive Summary 
 
On February 12, 2012, a proposal was presented to Council to extend a waterline to the new 
Temperature Control Solutions (Thermo King) business. The proposal involved applying for 
grant funds from the NC Rural Center and the Golden Leaf Foundation in order for the project to 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item:  
 
Council Meeting: 24 Sept. 12 Work Session 
 



CAF 12-126: 24 September 2012 Work Session 
Page 2 of 12 

 

be completed. At that time, via Resolution 12-16, Council approved a contribution to the 
required match in an amount not to exceed $954. 
 
Additional requirements for the project, primarily from NCDOT, have made it necessary for an 
increase to the original estimate. The County staff has successfully worked with the granting 
agencies to increase their original grant awards to correspond with the increase in the cost 
estimate. In order for the NC Rural Center to increase its 50% share of the project cost, the local 
governments must increase their match portion. The county has increased its match portion from 
$3,209 to $4,836 and is asking the City to increase their portion from $954 to $1,209. 
 
NC Rural Center requires that the County and City enter into an inter-local agreement in order to 
receive funding for this project, due to the fact that the City owns the water lines, but the County 
is the applicant for the grant.  The City and County attorneys have worked jointly to prepare the 
attached agreement for your review and/or approval. 
 
Enclosures:  

1. Ordinance 12-71 
2. Resolution 12-A-16 
3. Resolution 12-16 
4. Vance County Request 

 
  



CAF 12-126: 24 September 2012 Work Session 
Page 3 of 12 

 

O R D I N A N C E  12—71 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2012 – 2013 BUDGET 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #13 AMENDING FUND 73: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 14 June 2012, adopted the 

FY 12-13 Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating budget from time-to-time, and the reason for FY 12-13 Budget Amendment 
#13 is more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Ordinance. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

 
 
 

FUND:

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

 Trans Fr: 10 General Fund 73-980-461010 -$             10,000$         -$                10,000$                      
 Fund Balance Appropriation 73-990-491000 -$             8,400$           -$                8,400$                        

-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             18,400$         -$                18,400$                      
18,400$                      

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Non-Departmental Capital Reserve  73-660-509850 -$             13,100$         (300)$              12,800$                      
EDP 12-2 Thermo King 73-660-509851 -$             1,000$           300$               1,300$                        
EDP 12-1 Appliance Store 73-660-509852 -$             800$              -$                800$                           

EDP 12-3 Henderson 
Hospitality 73-660-509853 -$             3,500$           -$                3,500$                        

  -$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

-$                -$                           

Total -$             18,400$         -$                18,400$                      
18,400$                      

Variance -$               

Ordinance 12-71
73: Economic Development 

Capital Reserve Fund

Reference:
CAF: 12-A-45; Ord 12-49; BA #3

EXPENDITURES

Notes:
The purpose of this Budget Amendment is to bring forward previous year's balances and 
appropriate to lines approved during FY 12 but not yet expended.  Additionally, the 
Amendment provides for a new appropriation for the Henderson Hospitality LLC Rural Center 
Grant local match which the City is sharing with Vance County.

CAF: 12-126; Ord 12-71; BA #13

 

This ordinance serves to amend the Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund to 
increase the City's match for the grant shared with Vance County for the purpose of  
supplying water to Thermo King. 

REVENUES

FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #13



CAF 12-126: 24 September 2012 Work Session 
Page 4 of 12 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-71 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 24 day of September 2012:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   
ABSENT:  **.             
 
___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 12-126 
 
____________ 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12—71 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 24 September 2012 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of September 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
  



CAF 12-126: 24 September 2012 Work Session 
Page 5 of 12 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   12-A-16 
 
 

AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE CAPITAL RESERVES ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT FUND IN REGARDS TO THE NORTH CAROLINA RURAL 

CENTER AND GOLDEN LEAF FOUNDATION GRANTS’ APPLICATIONS FOR 
WATER LINE FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROSPECT 12-2; 

 and 
AUTHORIZING AN INTER-LOCAL AGREEMENT WITH VANCE COUNTY FOR 

ELIGIBILTIY FOR SAID MENTIONED GRANTS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses KSO 3, Enhanced Economic Development, and 
 
WHEREAS,  Economic Development Prospect 12-2 plans to locate in the City’s extraterritorial 

jurisdiction along I-85 and is in need of public potable water supply, and said extension 
of water line would be part of the City’s water distribution system; and 

 
WHEREAS, the NC Rural Center and Golden Leaf Foundation have indicated their willingness 

to provide funding of said project, due to the economic development prospect’s job 
creation, said funding to represent 95% of said project costs; and 

 
WHEREAS, Vance County would provide 75%, ($3,204), of the local funding match and the 

City would provide 25% ($954) of the local funding match; and 
 
WHEREAS, following design of the project, it has been determined that additional requirements, 

primarily from NCDOT, would increase the original cost estimates; and   
 
WHEREAS, Vance County intends to increase its share of the project from $3,204 to $4,836 to 

meet the NC Rural Center regulations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Vance County has requested that the City increase its share as well, from $954 to 

$1,209. 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT: 
 it does hereby approve the amended funding match for the installation of a water line for 

Economic Development Prospect 12-2 from $954 to $1,209. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL DOES HEREBY: authorize the 

execution of an inter-local agreement with Vance County, being more fully articulated in 
Attachment A to this Resolution and the Mayor to sign all documents to effect said 
agreement. 



CAF 12-126: 24 September 2012 Work Session 
Page 6 of 12 

 

The foregoing Resolution 12-A-16, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the *** day of **** 2012:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 
 
 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 41, pp. **, CAF 12-126 
 

 



 

 

CAF 12

 

-126: 24 Sep
Pa

ptember 201
age 7 of 12 

12 Work Sesssion 

Resolution
Attachmen

n 12-A-16 
nt A 

 



 

CAF 12-126: 24 Sep
Pa

ptember 201
age 8 of 12 

12 Work Sesssion 

 



CAF 12-126: 24 September 2012 Work Session 
Page 9 of 12 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   12-16 
 

AN AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL IN 
SUPPORT OF A NORTH CAROLINA RURAL CENTER AND GOLDEN LEAF 

FOUNDATION GRANTS’ APPLICATIONS FOR WATER LINE 
FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROSPECT 12-2 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 

January 2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses KSO 3, Enhanced Economic Development, and 
 
WHEREAS,  Economic Development Prospect 12-2 plans to locate in the City’s extraterritorial 

jurisdiction along I-85 and is in need of public potable water supply, and said extension 
of water line would be part of the City’s water distribution system; and 

 
WHEREAS, the NC Rural Center and Golden Leaf Foundation have indicated their willingness 

to provide funding of said project, due to the economic development prospect’s job 
creation, said funding to represent 95% of said project costs; and 

 
WHEREAS, Vance County would provide 75%, $3,204, of the local funding match and the City 

would provide 25% of the local funding match, $954, and 
 
WHEREAS, Vance County intends to request grant assistance from both the NC Rural Center 

and Golden Leaf Foundation for such funding provided the City agrees to fund its share 
of the local match.. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT: 
 

1. The City of Henderson will provide its share of 5% of the total requested grant 
amount provided; however, said amount noted will not exceed $954; and 
 

2. That Vance County will provide for the efficient administration, implementation and 
operation/maintenance of the project, including development of an agreement with 
the economic development prospect providing for reimbursement to the County and 
City for their shares of local funding and/or repayment of any grant funds to the NC 
Rural Center and/or the Golden Leaf Foundation should it not meet grant 
performance requirements; and 
 

3. That James D O’Geary, Mayor of the City of Henderson, and successors so titled, is 
hereby authorized to execute and file an application, as appropriate, with Vance 
County to both the NC Rural Center and Golden Leaf Foundation. 
  

CAF 12-126 
Attachment  #3 



CAF 12-126: 24 September 2012 Work Session 
Page 10 of 12 

 

The foregoing Resolution 12-16, upon consensus of Council and having been submitted to a roll 
call vote received the following votes and was APPROVED on this the 13th day of February 
2012:  YES: Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins and Daeke. NO: None.  
ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: Davis. 

 
 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
  



 

 

 

CAF 12

 

-126: 24 Sep
Pag

ptember 201
ge 11 of 12

12 Work Sesssion 

CAF
Atta

F 12-126 
chment  #4 

 



 

CAF 12-126: 24 Sep
Pag

ptember 201
ge 12 of 12

12 Work Sesssion 

 



 
 
 
 
 

Office of the City Manager 
134 Rose Avenue, P. O. Box 1434, Henderson, NC  27536 

Phone 252.430.5701 : Fax 252.492.7935 :  E-mail rgriffin@ci.henderson.nc.us 
www.ci.henderson.nc.us  

 
11 September 2012 

 
TO: Mayor O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Ray Griffin, City Manager 
 
RE:   CM: 12-13 

Re:   Consideration of Meal Tax Authority via Local Act of General Assembly 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
There was discussion during the FY12-13 Budget sessions relative to the efficacy of seeking a 
Local Act from the NC General Assembly providing for a meals tax on prepared foods as a 
means to generate new revenues.   This concept was also mentioned by several citizens during 
the budget process. 
 
There is no general authority for a locality to levy a prepared foods, or meals, tax.  Such 
authority is obtained via a Local Act by the General Assembly.  A limited number of localities 
have this authority.  Generally speaking, proceeds must be spent on tourism and/or cultural 
amenities and not “general” activities.  Consequently, it would appear the levying of meals tax 
would not provide relief to the general fund for existing programs; however, it would enable the 
City to consider augmenting the tourism function, currently operated by the County and a 
Tourism Board, or expand cultural amenities that otherwise would not have a realistic 
opportunity for funding given the state of the local economy. 
 
A search of the Web regarding meals taxes revealed the NC Restaurant and Lodging Association 
would oppose any local bill seeking to establish a meals tax. 
 
The purpose of this memo is to solicit discussion among the members of Council in order to 
determine if it is appropriate to seek a Local Act during the 2013 Session of the General 
Assembly. 
 
 
 
Enclosure:  

1. Prepared Meals and Beverage Tax in North Carolina 



 

 

CM 12-13 
Attachment #1 


	#31 SRM 24 September 2012
	#30 10 Sept 12 reg meeting
	#31 14 Sept Special Called Meeting
	#32 14 Sept Special Called Meeting
	12-22 Fire Prevention Week
	CAF 12-118 Municipal Agreement with NCDOT re RedBud Creek R 12-81
	CAF 12-117 Board and Commission  appointments
	REFERENCE Meetings and Event
	#32 WS 24 Sept 2012
	CM Memo re FY13 Airport Funding
	CAF 12-95- for Right-of-way management Ordinance
	CAF 12-119 Resignation Process
	CAF 12-124 Widening Chavasse Avenue Project R 12-84
	CAF 12-126 Amending Economic Development fund
	Regarding Meal Tax Authority via Local Act of General Assembly

